
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call David Penrose, Governance 
Services on 01432 383690 or e-mail dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Health & Social Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date: Thursday 11 July 2013 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber - Brockington 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

David Penrose, Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 383690 
Email: dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Health & Social 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor JG Jarvis 
Vice-Chairman Councillor SJ Robertson 
  

Councillor PA Andrews  
Councillor PL Bettington  
Councillor WLS Bowen  
Councillor MJK Cooper  
Councillor KS Guthrie  
Councillor JLV Kenyon  
Councillor JG Lester  
Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes  
Councillor J Stone  
Councillor GA Vaughan-Powell  
Councillor PJ Watts  

 
  

 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  11 JULY 2013 
 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details of any Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 

of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES (TO FOLLOW)     
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2013.  
   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 
(There will be no discussion of the issue at the time when the matter is raised.  
Consideration will be given to whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities.) 

 

   
6. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC     
   
 To note questions received from the public and the items to which they 

relate. 
 
(Questions are welcomed for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee meeting so 
long as the question is directly related to an item listed on the agenda.  If you have 
a question you would like to ask then please submit it no later than two working 
days before the meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an 
answer can be provided at the meeting).   

 

   
7. CHILDREN'S SERVICES WORKFORCE REPORT   9 - 14  
   
 To receive an update report on progress related to the recruitment and 

retention strategy in Children’s Social Care and the multi-agency Children’s 
Services workforce commissioning analysis. 

 

   
8. ADULT  SOCIAL CARE BUSINESS CHANGE PROGRAMME 2013/14   15 - 44  
   
 To seek the view of the Committee on the current arrangements for the 

Adult Social Care business change programme, its governance and to 
endorse:-  

• the proposed approach for the Next Stage Integration Project for 
Wye Valley NHS Trust and Herefordshire council’s adult social care 
service and  

• the open book review process that has been undertaken in relation 
to Herefordshire’s residential & nursing care banded rates of 
payment. 

The report is also to seek guidance from the committee on the key areas of 
the programme in which it would like to focus on during 2013/14 
 

 

   



 

 

9. HEREFORDSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP URGENT CARE 
REVIEW   

45 - 48  

   
 To receive a report on the Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Groups 

Adult Urgent Care engagement and communication plans. 
 

   
10. WORK PROGRAMME   49 - 56  
   
 To note the Committee’s Work Programme.  
   



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committee to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present 
if they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and 
consider whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities. 

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an 
item listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask 
then please submit it no later than two working days before the 
meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an 
answer can be provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the 
Committee Officer can be found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committee is not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

Public Transport Links 

 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service that runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell 
Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar 
Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction with 
Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 

 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located 
in the circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will 
be undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 

 

7



8



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Julie Rzezniczek, Interim Head of Improvement on Tel (01432) 260801 

 

MEETING: HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

MEETING DATE: 11 JULY 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: CHILDREN’S SERVICES WORKFORCE 
REPORT 

REPORT BY: INTERIM HEAD OF IMPROVEMENT 
 

1. Classification  
 Open 

2. Key Decision  
 This is not a key decision 

3. Wards Affected 

 County-wide  

4. Purpose 
4.1 The purpose of this report is to update members on progress related firstly to the 

recruitment and retention strategy in children’s social care and how this is progressing in 
relation to the priority areas for action set out in the Improvement Notice.  

4.2 This report summarises the information provided to the Herefordshire Safeguarding and 
Protecting Children Improvement Board in March, 2013. 

5. Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: The Committee comment on the progress to date. 

6. Alternative Options 
6.1 Please reference the presentation. 

7. Reasons for Recommendations 
7.1 A well trained and supported children’s workforce is essential to ensure children’s 

outcomes improve. 

7.2 One of the basic requirements of an effective child protection service is the recruitment and 
retention of talented social workers. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

9



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Julie Rzezniczek, Interim Head of Improvement on Tel (01432) 260801 

 

8. Key Considerations 
8.1 Herefordshire is a rural authority with the offices based primarily in the City centre.  

Hereford is over an hour’s drive from any highly populated areas, making the commute for 
potential recruits from the most populated surrounding areas, a challenge.    

8.2 Hereford is however a pleasant area to live and to work, and generic council policies and 
provisions for staff are what one would expect in a local authority, for example, flexible 
working arrangements, access to Occupational Health, training and development support. 

8.3 Social Care staff are currently provided with standard IT equipment and basic mobile 
phones.  Consideration has not yet been given to the benefits of the service and to staff 
retention, of a more advanced set of mobile devices to support staff in their work. 

8.4 Herefordshire has an appointed Principal Social Worker at Head of Service level, who 
leads the Advanced Practitioner service.   This service is already valued by newly qualified 
social workers.  The role is developing to improve the quality of practice of all social 
workers through mentoring, developing specific skills and focussing on the requirements of 
ensuring social work basics are done extraordinary well. 

8.5 The Ofsted inspection undertaken in September, 2012, made a number of 
recommendations which related to workforce issues: 

8.6 Recommendation 7  
Required the authority to improve the quality and consistency of management oversight 
and decision making. External coaching and mentoring was delivered to frontline managers 
during November and December. Additionally a further professional development 
framework and facility is in place so that it can be delivered to frontline managers as they 
are recruited to the authority. 

8.7 Recommendation 14  
Required the authority to ensure that first line managers have sufficient skills, knowledge 
and experience to effectively undertake their role. ILM training for all first line managers, 
and recruitment strategy to ensure high calibre managers.  ILM training for all first line 
managers is in place, ready for delivery to newly appointed and existing managers. 

8.8 Recommendation 19 
Required the authority to reduce the number of changes of social workers experienced by 
children and their families. Three areas of work are underpinning the response to this 
recommendation, Firstly a ‘Child's Journey’ 6 week project is underway to analyse 
safeguarding and social work through Lean Systems Thinking in order to inform the 
organisational structure and practice.  Secondly an improved career structure is being 
developed to complement the recruitment and retention plan to create greater stability 
within the workforce, and thirdly a risk and resilience plan is in development.  The 
department is also piloting a social worker apprenticeship scheme with the aim of 
encouraging local people to join the department on a long term basis.   

8.9 Furthermore the Improvement Notice following the Ofsted inspection made some specific 
requirements for improvement related to workforce as follows: 

8.10 Attention must be paid to the eight standards for employers of social workers 

8.11 Implement a programme of induction, training, mentoring and continuous professional 
development for all social care staff including managers to improve the quality of frontline 
social work.  In particular ensure that this programme includes training for staff and 
frontline managers on risk analysis.  The council should report the impact of the training on 
improving outcomes for children, to the improvement board. 

10



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Julie Rzezniczek, Interim Head of Improvement on Tel (01432) 260801 

 

8.12 Following an analysis of the needs of the service, develop and implement an overall 
workforce strategy. The strategy should provide clear evidence of impact in creating 
capable, stable and sustainable workforce which requires fewer agency staff and which 
includes clear recruitment and retention plans.  The aim should be to improve the quality and 
continuity of social care staff experienced by children and families. 

8.13 Review and monitor social workers responsibilities and workloads to ensure staff have a 
manageable range of work and a caseload consistent with their level of experience and 
competence.  Ensure that the Improvement Board receives workforce management 
information to confirm that this is achieved and sustained. 

8.14 Current Workforce Arrangements 
This section provides some data and information on the details of workforce issues that 
inform strategic direction. 

8.15 Based on 12/13 budgeted establishment

Role Establishment Permanent Agency Vacant
(Over)/ under 
establishment

Service Manager 6.00 4.00 2.00 0.00 0.00
Assistant Team 
Manager 9.00 4.00 6.00 2.00 (3.00)
AP's 8.00 4.00 0.00 4.00 4.00
Social Workers 56.05 54.66 14.00 1.59 (14.20)
Total 79.05 66.66 22.00 7.59 (13.20)  

8.16 The current children’s social care workforce structure is comprised of Service Managers, 
Team Leaders, Advanced Practitioners, Social Workers and a number of unqualified workers 
with a range of titles.  The unqualified workers include, family support workers, 16+workers, 
homelessness workers, and post adoption support workers.   

8.17 ** Please note that from 1st April the majority of the Assistant Team Managers are now 
budgeted as Team Leaders.  This information was produced in March, 2013. 

8.18 Based on 13/14 budgeted establishment

Role Establishment Permanent Agency Vacant
(Over)/ under 
establishment

Service Manager 6.00 4.00 2.00 0.00 0.00
Team Leaders 11.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.00
Assistant Team 
Manager 1.00 4.00 6.00 2.00 (9.00)
AP's 4.00 4.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Senior Social Worker 4.00 0.00 0.00 4.00 4.00
Social Workers 61.19 54.66 14.00 1.59 (7.47)
Total 87.19 66.66 22.00 7.59 (1.47)  

8.19 Additionally there 29.5 fte Family Support workers and these are in part dedicated to teams 
at varying levels and in part fully staffing the Intensive Family Support Service (13). 

8.20 The recent change in structure relating to titles in the team means that the workforce data 
baseline information will be based on the 2013/14 workforce establishment.  Meanwhile, 
during the transition to the new structure, teams will currently show some differences in job 
titles.  An additional anomaly is that some teams, e.g. FAST are currently temporarily 
overstaffed in order to combat pressures following the restructure. 

11



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Julie Rzezniczek, Interim Head of Improvement on Tel (01432) 260801 

 

8.21 Herefordshire Council have experienced a reasonable level of success in recruiting newly 
qualified Social Workers due to four main factors; 

8.22 Pay scales for this particular group of Social Workers is higher than in other Local 
Authorities. 

8.23 Herefordshire Council runs its own Social Work Scholarship Scheme which attracts 
candidates from HC staff. 

8.24 Herefordshire Council has a number of established partnerships with Universities which 
provide a good range of placements and thereby a pool of good candidates who wants to 
come and work with us following placement experience. 

8.25 Herefordshire Council offers Post Qualification to all NQSW joining the Local Authority. 

8.26 A staged approach to the recruitment and retention issues in children’s social care has taken 
place over the last six months. 

8.27 In October, 2012  a proposal was agreed for: 
a) The post of Assistant Team Manager be revised as Team Leader, and upgraded to 

HC 10, and increased in compliment by 2 fte: and 
b) That the post of Advanced Practitioner be regraded to HC 10, and reduced in 

compliment by 2 fte posts; and  
c) That the post of Senior Social Worker be established at HC9. 

8.28 The rationale for this was that by securing the right balance of staff within the Social work 
component of the workforce, it was expected that it would be more possible to achieve the 
aspiration of having the most appropriately skilled worker working with the right child and 
family, and thus more likely to be achieving better outcomes for children.  This set the scene 
for the future structuring and placing of staff in the service. 

8.29 In January and February 2013 a recruitment campaign was initiated which included a one-off 
offer of Golden Hello supplements.   

8.30 Training and Development 
Supervision improvements have been made within the context of the practice workstream of 
the improvement board and these include the introduction of a single supervision template. 
The Institute of Leadership and Management training programme has continued and this has 
been enhanced by practice focus on recording of supervision records, as well as workshop 
activity.  The children’s social care workforce development plan for 2013/2014 has been 
developed and is attached. 

8.31 The core training programme has continued and this has been enhanced by practice 
workshops on the following: 

• Strategy meetings and s.47 investigations 

• Feedback from the audit programme 
• Core Groups 

• Voice of the Child 

8.32 Staff Engagement 
The Assistant Director for children and young people provider services, has initiated a 
programme of all staff briefings which are themed on the various elements of the 
improvement plan.   

12



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Julie Rzezniczek, Interim Head of Improvement on Tel (01432) 260801 

 

8.33 There is also a long established, ‘improving working lives’ group at which children’s social 
care staff attend.  This group oversaw a council wide staff survey during 2012 and are in the 
process of reporting back on this survey.  Whilst responses were higher than previously, the 
general nature of responses indicated a sense of poor morale across the service.   

8.34 There have also been a series of 6 ‘root and branch’ workshops specifically for Social Work 
staff to consult on the outcomes of the Ofsted inspection, the challenges facing the service in 
the light of its findings and recommendations, and the implications for our future structural 
arrangements. The majority of the staff group felt that there were too many artificial transition 
points in the service currently, impacting on both outcomes for children and job satisfaction 
for workers. 

8.35 Introduction of MASH 
From July2013, the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub will begin operation, combining  
elements of the current FAST Service with Police, Health, Education and Women’s Aid 
colleagues in improving information sharing and decision making arrangements with respect 
to new contacts to Children’s Social Care. From the current FAST Service, 2 Team Leaders, 
4 Social Workers, 3 Customer Support Officers and an Information and Needs Assessment 
Coordinator will transfer to the MASH, where all Contact screening will take place, as well as 
s47 investigations. If a case requires an assessment (other than s47), in the immediate 
future it will transfer to the remainder of the FAST Service, which will be split into 2 teams for 
management purposes, and which will focus on Initial Assessments, and where necessary, 
Core Assessments (in advance of the new single assessment being implemented). 

8.36 Business Support 
Over recent months it has become clear that capacity to deliver against current demand in 
children’s social care is too limited with the balance of managers (2) to business support 
staff (60) being inadequate.  Therefore  remedial action has taken place on a balance of both 
permanent and temporary bases, pending an urgent review of the business support 
arrangements taking place.  This review will consider the demand for business support in the 
context of the Child’s Journey review. 

9. Community Impact 
9.1 The improvements planned will lead to a positive impact on the most vulnerable children and 

families in Herefordshire. 

10. Equality and Human Rights 
 By the nature of its work Children’s social care services, in the exercise of their functions, 

have due regard to the need to - 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by 
or under this Act;  

• advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

• foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it."  

11. Financial Implications 
11.1 There are no specific implications to this report, however further recruitment and retention 

proposals may have financial implications. 

12. Legal Implications 
12.1 This report does not raise any legal issues and arises from a mandatory statutory process. 

13



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
Julie Rzezniczek, Interim Head of Improvement on Tel (01432) 260801 

 
 
 

13. Risk Management 
13.1 Risks related to the Improvement Plan are recorded on a risk register and the recruitment 

and retention of a stable workforce is a critical area related to the necessary improvements 
required in the Improvement plan and notice. 

14. Consultees 
14.1 Multi-agency membership of the Improvement Board. 

15. Appendices 
15.1 None.  

16. Background Papers 
16.1 None identified.   

14



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Mason, Interim Transformation Manager, Adult Social Care Tel (01432) 261743 

 

 

MEETING: 
 

HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

MEETING DATE: 11th JULY 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: ADULT SOCIAL CARE BUSINESS CHANGE 
PROGRAMME 2013/14 

REPORT BY: DAVID MASON, INTERIM TRANSFORMATION 
MANAGER, ADULT SOCIAL CARE  

 
 

1. Classification  
 Open 

2. Key Decision  

 This is not an executive decision  

3. Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

4. Purpose 

 To seek the views of the Health & Social Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 
the current arrangements for the Adult Social Care business change programme, its 
governance and to endorse:-  

• the proposed approach for the Next Stage Integration Project for Wye Valley 
NHS Trust and Herefordshire council’s adult social care service and  

• the open book review process that has been undertaken in relation to 
Herefordshire’s residential & nursing care banded rates of payment.  

The report is also to seek guidance from the committee on the key areas of the 
programme in which it would like to focus on during 2013/14.  

5. Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: the Committee seek to endorse 
 
(a) The governance structure in place for the adult social care business 

change programme 2013/14 and the projects that are due to be 
completed in 2013/14, reviewing key risks and to provide assurance on 
the mitigation activities; 

(b) The proposals for the Next Stage Integration Project for Wye Valley NHS 
Trust and Herefordshire council’s adult social care service, to provide 
assurance on the public engagement process and to give a high level 
view of the current commissioning timescales; and 

AGENDA ITEM 8

15



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Mason, Interim Transformation Manager, Adult Social Care Tel (01432) 261743 

 

(c) The open book review for residential & nursing care in Herefordshire, to 
ensure that  the consultation process with providers and service users 
and any change in price will not have a significant impact on the quality 
& safeguarding of services provided; and 

(d) The proposed focus of the health and social care overview & scrutiny 
committee work-plan incorporating key areas of the Adult Social Care 
business change programme.  

6. Alternative Options 
6.1 To continue with the current service offer as it currently stands which will continue to 

put significant pressure on the council’s limited financial resources.   

7. Reasons for Recommendations 
7.1 • To provide an overview on the adult social care business change programme 

and to provide an update on the recent activity on some of the key projects.  

8. Key Considerations 
8.1 Meeting the needs of an aging population whilst improving outcomes and staying 

within reducing public sector budgets is a national, not a local, issue.  

This programme has two stages; 

1. To regain control of finance and governance of the Adult Social Care system 

2. Redesign the adult’s social care system in Herefordshire; requiring a 
fundamental shift from a model of state provided care to one where people 
take responsibility for their own wellbeing. Thereby reducing the level and 
volume of care provided by the state whilst improving the quality of life for 
people with care and support needs. 

What will be different? 

• People will take primary responsibility for meeting their health & wellbeing 
needs.  

• They will be able to exercise choice and control; the support system will 
positively avoid developing “learned helplessness or dependence”  

• Family, carers and the community will play a far greater role  

• The focus of the state’s resources will be both targeted and universal. It will 
focus on meeting the ‘needs’ (not demand) of the most vulnerable whilst also 
reducing demand for services through early intervention and prevention.  

• Charging will be used to encourage the right behaviour 
 
Governance Structure  
The governance structure of the adult social care business change programme has 
been developed to ensure that there is clear accountability across Herefordshire 
council for its delivery and that real change can be affected throughout the adult 
social care service.  
 
This is in response to the transformational change that is needed to ensure that the 
council is able to deliver services to those who are considered to have substantial 
and critical needs as well as delivering anticipated savings of £7.078m savings in 

16



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Mason, Interim Transformation Manager, Adult Social Care Tel (01432) 261743 

 

2013/14.  For more information on the Business Change Programme structure 
please refer to Appendix One. 
 
Next Stage integration  
The council currently commissions Wye Valley Trust and 2gether Foundation Trust 
to manage and provide a range of adult social care services on its behalf which are 
delivered through Trust management. Staff within adult social care are currently 
seconded from the council to both organisations. These commissioning 
arrangements have to be reviewed because the existing arrangements will cease 
when the current S75 agreements come to an end in September 2013 (WVT) and 
March 2014 (2gether). The Council also has to take account of the Care and 
Support Bill, the financial outlook and future transformation requirements. 
 
The council, in conjunction with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), is 
considering how it can continue to deliver high quality integrated community health 
and social care through transforming our approach to give residents greater choice 
and control, enable better management of demand for services and identify more 
cost effective approaches to meet statutory responsibilities. This project is the 
framework to ensure that we achieve this goal.  
 
The financial stability of the council and Wye Valley Trust is under significant 
pressure. The local authority has been adversely affected by central government 
funding allocations. Herefordshire has also been slower than other councils in 
transforming services to date, and this, combined with the growth in older people 
means we have a savings plan (within ASC alone) of £7.078m to ensure we deliver 
a balanced budget of £48.797m in 2013/14 (before budget virements), of which  
£3.9m is not yet assured. 

A key component of these savings plans, the Next Stage Integration project needs to 
deliver £1m in 2013/14 and this includes a headcount reduction. However the new 
organisational structure will provide:-  

• A professional leadership / management structure 
• Moves to a neighbourhood model that reflects the new structure in health 
• Locates social care in a different part of the pathway 
• Creates a professional social work role that has a direct access to senior 

management within the council  
• Reflects the national strategy; move towards personalisation and delivers a 

range of activities that ‘enable’ users to continue to live independent lives. 
Personal budgets are ring-fenced 

• Creates a single access point that is aligned to the broader council 
• Creates a career path for social care staff 
• Is financially affordable 
• Gives greater autonomy to staff to make decisions 
• Reflects the journey that we want service users to follow 
• Builds in flexibility to be able to move staff / resources to reflect demand 

pressures 
• Creates a number of new specialist roles to provide expertise where required 

and which support the greater focus on enablement (e.g. Occupational 
therapists) 

• Direct Provision by 1/3rd party providers, mutual, social enterprise, 1/3rd 
sector etc; council commissions direct provision.  Transitional structure until 
this is established 
 

17



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Mason, Interim Transformation Manager, Adult Social Care Tel (01432) 261743 

 

For more information on this please refer to the appendices of this report (What is 
meant by Next Stage Integration, emerging themes from staff engagement, 
feedback from public engagement events, communication strategy & proposed new 
organisational structure which is currently out for staff consultation) 
 
Open Book Review  - Residential & Nursing Care 
In July 2012 the Council commissioned an open book review of nursing and 
residential care for older people. Whilst some benchmarking data suggests that the 
price paid by Herefordshire Council for places in residential and nursing homes may 
be higher than neighbouring and comparator local authorities, in setting its fees the 
Council must have ‘due regard to the actual costs of providing care and other local 
factors.’ Following consideration of this matter at Cabinet on the 20th June it was 
agreed that further consultation would be undertaken with homes providers, before a 
decision is made. Officers are aware that some providers are particularly concerned 
at the proposal the Council’s price structure only allows for a 2.5 per cent return on 
capital. Return on capital is a real cost for care homes and the Council must have 
due regard to it (and all other legitimate current and future costs) when setting prices 
for care. The report was also referred to Health and Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The main driver for this project is to ensure that there is a fair and transparent 
approach to the charging for residential & nursing care provision for everyone in 
Herefordshire. This will mean balancing considerations of the providers’ actual costs 
with the desire of the Council to obtain best value. Best value in this context means 
setting a pricing structure which is fair to providers and customers as well as the 
Council. Such a pricing structure will be one which is likely to ensure a reasonably 
stable and competitive market for services and, above all, one which is likely to 
deliver an appropriate quality of care for customers. 
 
The background papers to this report include: the Cabinet report which was 
considered on 20 June 2013, the resulting decision notice, and the Independent 
Social Worker and Accountant Report which informed the Cabinet report. 
 
This is an area where many local authorities have been challenged in the Courts and 
Members are referred to the Legal Implications section to this report where this is 
discussed in more detail. 
 
Home Care Re-commissioning 
It is expected that the home care project, which is a significant element in the 
business support programme, will be in a position to seek a decision from the 
Cabinet Lead Member responsible for Adult Social Care, Councillor Graham Powell, 
about the basis for consultation with service users and providers later this month.  
This is a non-key decision.  When the consultation has been progressed and there 
are emergent proposals for the re-commissioning these should be subject to 
consideration by Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to a 
key decision about the form of the re-commissioning. 
 
Future Areas of Review  
It is anticipated that the key areas of delivery for the business change programme 
should be subject to scrutiny at HSCOSC; suggested areas for the Health& Social 
Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee to consider as part of the forward plan are 

18



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Mason, Interim Transformation Manager, Adult Social Care Tel (01432) 261743 

 

listed below: - 

• Residential & Nursing re-procurement 

• Homecare re-procurement 

• Progress of the next stage integration for WVT NHS 

• Self-Directed Support (Making it real) 

Transitioning arrangements for service users when contracts change 

9. Community Impact 
9.1 Through the adult social care business change programme the following council 

corporate priorities will be met:- 

• Public services are prioritised to support those in need of services to maintain 
their independence or stay safe; 

• People are able to take more responsibility for themselves (includes making 
healthy choices & focus on prevention); 

• People are active in their communities and look out for the more vulnerable 
so they can live independently; 

• People Stay Safe. 

10. Equality and Human Rights 
 The Equality and Human Rights issues arising from these changes have been 

considered as part of the individual elements of the Business Change Programme.  
An overarching Equality Impact assessment for the whole programme is currently 
being prepared and will be completed by the end of July 2013.  Key changes will not 
be progressed until the EIA has been approved. 
 

11. Financial Implications 
11.1 The savings plans have been calculated and profiled based upon receiving approval 

to go ahead with key schemes such as the Next Stage Integration project and Open 
Book re-procurement for residential and nursing placements in accordance with 
project plans. Any delays or amendments are likely to have an adverse affect on the 
delivery in full of the proposed savings. For example the final report and savings 
estimate for the open book review assumed that all prices would be changed from 
1st January 2014. If it was to be agreed that current clients fees are not to be 
changed this would create a cost pressure, as would any delay in the procurement 
process and late introduction of the new fees. Delaying full implementation of an 
agreed revised schedule would have a significant financial impact.  

12. Legal Implications 
12.1 The Council is under a statutory duty to make arrangements for providing residential 

accommodations for adults (aged 18 or over) who ‘by reason of age, illness, 
disability or any other circumstances are in need of care and attention which is not 
otherwise available to them … ’ However, a local authority is only required to make, 
or continue, such arrangements if the costs do not exceed what ‘they would usually 
expect to pay having regard to [the person’s] assessed needs.’ This is generally 
referred to as ‘the usual cost.’ The usual cost may vary between specific groups: 
normally between ‘residential’ and ‘residential with nursing’ (often shortened to just 
‘nursing’). 

19



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Mason, Interim Transformation Manager, Adult Social Care Tel (01432) 261743 

 

 
12.2 When setting its usual costs, the Council must have ‘due regard to the actual 
costs of providing care and other local factors.’ This means understanding the 
operating costs of the local providers: it is not sufficient merely to look at 
benchmarked costs of neighbouring or other similar authorities. This is at the heart 
of the Open Book Review: providers in Herefordshire have been encouraged to 
provide the Review Team with evidence of their actual costs. The Courts have 
recognised that return on capital is a real cost for care homes and the Council must 
have due regard to it (and all other legitimate current and future costs to providers) 
when setting its usual costs for care. 
 
12.3 It is essential that the further consultation with the providers complies with four 
clear legal principles: 

1. The consultation must be undertaken at a formative stage - the Council has 
not yet set its usual prices, merely indicated a preferred level of pricing as 
the basis for further consultation. 

2. Those consulted must receive sufficient information to allow them to 
formulate a considered response – the Council has been and will continue to 
be open and transparent in its provision of information, in line with the spirit 
of an Open Book Review. 

3. Consultees must be allowed sufficient time to consider the information and 
respond. 

4. The outcome of the consultation must be taken conscientiously into account 
by the final decision maker. This includes the decision maker having 
sufficient time to consider the consultees’ representations. 

 
12.4 This is an area of law where many local authorities have been successfully 
challenged in the Courts. It is therefore essential that the current round of further 
consultation is carried out in line with the above four principles. 
 
12.5 It is lawful for the Council’s difficult financial position to be taken into account in 
informing the decision making processes. However, financial constraints cannot be 
used in isolation to justify cuts in the usual costs the Council is prepared to pay. As 
already mentioned, the Council must have due regard to the providers’ actual costs, 
including the matter of the return on capital. The decision maker will need to balance 
considerations of the providers’ actual costs with the desire of the Council to obtain 
best value. Best value in this context means setting a pricing structure which is fair 
to providers and customers as well as the Council. Such a pricing structure will be 
one which is likely to ensure a reasonably stable and competitive market for 
services and, above all, one which is likely to deliver an appropriate quality of care 
for customers. 
 

13. Risk Management 
13.1 
 

1. The absence of system wide leadership will prevent the health and wellbeing 
of the citizens of Herefordshire. Will be mitigated by applying appropriate 
programme and organisational governance to ensure there is ownership and 
accountability.  

2. A lack of evidence based outcomes to ensure that citizens are safeguarded. 
We will ensure that all of the programme’s activity is aligned to the national 
outcomes framework for adult social care.  

20



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Mason, Interim Transformation Manager, Adult Social Care Tel (01432) 261743 

 

 
 
 

3. The council cannot pay its bills and the associated risks to the wider 
economy. This will be mitigated by developing a robust and resilience 
financial sustainability savings targets across the adult social care service.  

4. Herefordshire council does not have the resilience and ability to achieve 
rapid and urgent change. By deploying programme governance we will build 
in the appropriate level of resilience and ability to deliver real change for 
Herefordshire.  

A full risk register on the programme and its associated activities is maintained and 
appropriate escalation is managed through the programme governance model.  

14. Consultees 
14.1 Residential & nursing care home providers 

Adult Social Care staff 
Wye Valley NHS Trust 
Herefordshire Council’s Directorate Management Team 
Adult Social Care Business Change Programme Board 
Cabinet Member for Health & Wellbeing 
Service Users 
 

15. Appendices 
15.1 Appendix One – Business Change Programme structure 

Appendix Two – Staff structure  
Appendix Three – Next Stage Integration project overview 
Appendix Four – Next Stage Integration communications plan 
Appendix Five – Next Stage Integration – emerging themes from staff workshops 
Appendix Six  - Key themes from public events 

16. Background Papers 
16.1 Open book review cabinet report & decision notice 

 

21



22



A
.S

.C
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

B
o

ar
d

 –
 C

h
ai

r 
– 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o

f 
P

eo
p

le
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(J

o
 D

av
id

so
n

)
S

R
O

 (
S

en
io

r 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 O

w
n

er
) 

– 
A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
(H

el
en

 C
o

o
m

b
es

)
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
to

 in
cl

ud
e:

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
S

po
ns

or
s 

fr
om

 W
or

k 
st

re
am

s,
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
fr

om
 P

ar
tn

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

, C
hi

ef
 F

in
an

ci
al

 O
ffi

ce
r 

(H
C

) 
 

B
C

P
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
M

an
ag

er
, H

ea
d 

of
 A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

F
in

an
ce

, A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 L
ea

d
S

ub
je

ct
 M

at
te

r 
E

xp
er

ts
 e

.g
. H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 &

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
vi

te
d 

as
 a

nd
 w

he
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

A
.S

.C
 C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

, C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 &
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
O

p
er

at
io

n
al

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
&

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

W
o

rk
 S

tr
ea

m
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

B
o

ar
d

D
o

n
n

a 
E

th
er

to
n

 
  P

ro
gr

es
s

 
 C

rit
ic

al
 Is

su
es

/R
is

ks
!

 D
ec

is
io

ns
!

 K
ey

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

W
o

rk
st

ea
m

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
-

A
g

re
ei

n
g

 k
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
, g

u
id

an
ce

 f
o

r 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

in
g

 w
it

h
 s

ta
ke

h
o

ld
er

s 
en

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
th

e 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

co
m

m
u

ni
ca

ti
o

n
p

ro
to

co
ls

 a
re

 a
d

h
er

ed
 t

o
. 

W
o

rk
 s

tr
ea

m
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 
S

p
o

n
so

r

P
ro

je
ct

s

A
ll 

w
o

rk
 s

tr
ea

m
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 h
av

e 
at

 t
h

ei
r 

co
re

, p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 q
u

al
it

y 
ca

re
, d

el
iv

er
in

g
 c

o
st

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 in

n
o

va
ti

ve
 a

n
d

 a
m

b
it

io
u

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

h
ic

h
 

ad
d

 v
al

u
e 

to
 t

h
e 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

H
er

ef
o

rd
sh

ir
e

O
pe

n 
B

oo
k 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(R

es
 &

 N
ur

s)
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n

F
es

tiv
al

 H
ou

si
ng

D
ay

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s

H
om

e 
C

ar
e

A
du

lt 
P

la
ce

m
en

t 
S

ch
em

e

R
ea

bl
em

en
t i

nc
 

T
el

ec
ar

e

IC
E

S
A

sp
ire

M
id

la
nd

 H
ea

rt

S
ha

w
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

N
or

fo
lk

 H
ou

se
  

M
an

d
y 

A
p

p
le

b
y 

W
o

rk
 S

tr
ea

m
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

B
o

ar
d

O
n-

lin
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 d
ire

ct
or

y

Im
pr

ov
ed

 d
at

a 
qu

al
ity

F
W

I -
A

gr
es

so

F
W

I D
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
 

R
ev

is
ed

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

&
 

R
es

ou
rc

es

C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
et

s

C
ar

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
ca

lc
ul

at
or

D
em

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t

R
A

S

O
O

H
 &

 A
M

P
H

H
er

ef
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’s

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

B
o

ar
d

 –
 C

h
ai

r 
– 

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 (

A
lis

ta
ir

 N
ei

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

in
cl

ud
es

: A
ll 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
an

d 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il

2G
 B

o
ar

d

C
ab

in
et

Q
IP

P
 (

W
V

T
, C

.C
.G

, 2
G

 &
 

H
C

)

K
ey

 S
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
s 

to
 in

fo
rm

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 &

 s
cr

u
ti

n
y 

co
m

m
it

te
e

T
ra

d
e 

U
n

io
n

s

W
V

T
 B

o
ar

d

C
ar

er
s 

H
ub

R
ec

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
R

en
eg

o
ti

at
in

g

B
W

O
W

 s
te

er
in

g
 g

ro
u

p

E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
S

ys
te

m

H
ou

si
ng

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

Im
pr

ov
ed

 r
ep

or
tin

g

W
o

rk
 s

tr
ea

m
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 
S

p
o

n
so

r

 
  P

ro
gr

es
s

 
 C

rit
ic

al
 Is

su
es

/R
is

ks
!

 D
ec

is
io

ns
!

 K
ey

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

u
st

ai
n

ab
ili

ty
 G

ro
u

p
C

h
ai

r
– 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

– 
A

nn
ie

 B
ro

ok
es

 
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
– 

Lo
ui

se
 R

ou
nd

, R
ut

h 
T

ay
lo

r,
 D

on
na

 E
th

er
to

n,
 S

hi
rle

y 
C

ou
lta

s,
 C

hr
is

 J
on

es
O

b
se

rv
er

-
C

llr
 G

 P
ow

el
l

C
o

u
n

ci
l’s

 B
u

d
g

et
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
M

ee
ti

n
g

s
C

h
ai

r 
– 

C
hi

ef
 F

in
an

ci
al

 
O

ffi
ce

r

N
.S

.I

S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
P

ra
ct

ic
e

E
ff

ec
ti

ve
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 &
 

sy
st

em
s

O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l c

ha
ng

e

B
u

si
n

es
s 

A
s 

U
su

al
 D

av
id

 M
as

o
n

W
o

rk
 S

tr
ea

m
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

B
o

ar
d

2g
 C

on
tr

ac
t c

la
us

e

W
R

V
S

W
V

T
 C

on
tr

ac
t c

la
us

e

V
ill

ag
e 

W
ar

de
ns

F
es

tiv
al

 H
ou

si
ng

2g
 –

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

I

W
o

rk
 s

tr
ea

m
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 
S

p
o

n
so

r

 
  P

ro
gr

es
s

 
 C

rit
ic

al
 Is

su
es

/R
is

ks
!

 D
ec

is
io

ns
!

 K
ey

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

T
ra

ns
iti

on
s

O
ut

 o
f c

ou
nt

y 
pl

ac
em

en
ts

In
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n

S
oc

ia
l E

nt
er

pr
is

es

O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

W
V

T
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
I

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

I T
ra

in
in

g 
S

tr
at

eg
y

T
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 fu
nd

in
g

D
is

pu
te

d 
in

vo
ic

es

C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
et

s

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 W

el
lb

ei
n

g
 B

o
ar

d
 –

 C
h

ai
r 

– 
C

llr
 G

ra
h

am
 P

o
w

el
l

Pro
gr

am
m

e
be

in
g

he
ld

to

ac
co

un
t b

y:

Hea
lth

 &
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 

O
ve

rv
iew

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

Com
m

itt
ee

Car
e 

Q
ua

lity
 C

om
m

iss
io

n

Ser
vic

e 
Use

rs
 a

nd
 th

eir
 

fa
m

ilie
s 

Hea
lth

 W
at

ch

C
.C

.G
 B

o
ar

d

F
W

I S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

o
ar

d

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
S

ta
ff

 
F

o
ru

m

S
er

vi
ce

 u
se

r 
st

ee
ri

n
g

 
g

ro
u

p
s

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
C

h
an

g
e 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
M

an
ag

er
 (

L
o

u
is

e 
R

o
u

n
d

)

P
ro

je
ct

 L
ea

d
s 

N
et

w
o

rk
S

ky
la

ke
s

KPMG

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 

(A
la

n
 H

o
lm

es
)

M
ar

ke
t P

os
iti

on
 

st
at

em
en

t

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

&
 

P
ub

lic
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t

E
xe

cu
tiv

e,
 C

ab
in

et
 &

 
P

ar
tn

er
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t

S
er

vi
ce

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
&

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t

B
la

nc
hw

or
th

T
ar

ge
te

d 
re

vi
ew

s

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

 D
ec

is
io

ns

V
er

si
on

_1
.0

_J
U

L_
F

in
al

20
13

23



24



H
ea

d 
of

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 H

C1
3 

(1
.0

FT
E)

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 C
ity

 a
nd

 
Ac

ce
ss

 P
oi

nt
H

C 
11

 (1
.0

FT
E )

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 S
er

vi
ce

 
M

an
ag

er
 E

as
t S

A 
&

 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

H
C1

1 
(1

.0
FT

E)

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 W
es

t a
nd

 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t L

TC
 &

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s

H
C 

11
 (1

.0
 F

TE
)

So
ci

al
 W

or
k 

Te
am

 
Le

ad
er

H
C 

10
 (1

.0
FT

E)

So
ci

al
 W

or
k/

O
T 

Te
am

 L
ea

de
r

H
C 

10
 (1

.0
FT

E)

So
ci

al
 W

or
k 

Te
am

 
Le

ad
er

H
C 

10
 (1

.0
FT

E)

So
ci

al
 W

or
k/

O
T

Te
am

 L
ea

de
r

H
C1

0 
(1

.0
FT

E)

So
ci

al
 W

or
k 

Te
am

 
Le

ad
er

H
C1

0 
(1

.0
FT

E)

So
ci

al
 W

or
k/

D
T 

Te
am

 L
ea

de
r

H
C1

0 
(1

.0
FT

E)
  

Se
ni

or
 P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
 H

C9
 (2

.0
FT

E)
 

So
ci

al
 W

or
ke

rs
 H

C8
 (9

.0
FT

E)

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l T
he

ra
pi

st
 H

C8
 (1

.0
FT

E)

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 E

na
bl

em
en

t O
ff

ic
er

s 
H

C6
 (5

.0
FT

E)

Su
pp

or
t P

la
nn

er
/R

ev
ie

w
 O

ff
ic

er
 H

C6
 (5

.0
FT

E)

Te
le

ca
re

 A
dv

is
or

 H
C5

 (1
.0

FT
E)

D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
 H

C5
 (1

.0
FT

E)

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
O

ff
ic

er
 H

C4
 (3

.0
FT

E)

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
up

po
rt

 H
C3

 (1
.0

FT
E)

  

  S
en

io
r P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
 H

C9
 (2

.0
FT

E)

So
ci

al
 W

or
ke

rs
 H

C8
 (9

.0
.0

FT
E)

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l T
he

ra
pi

st
 H

C8
 (1

.0
FT

E)

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 E

na
bl

em
en

t O
ff

ic
er

s 
H

C6
 (5

.0
FT

E)

Su
pp

or
t P

la
nn

er
/R

ev
ie

w
 O

ff
ic

er
 H

C6
 (5

.0
FT

E)

Te
le

ca
re

 A
dv

is
or

 H
C5

 (1
.0

FT
E)

D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
 H

C5
 (1

.0
FT

E)

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
up

po
rt

 H
C3

 (1
.0

FT
E)

 
Se

ni
or

 P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 H
C9

 (2
.0

FT
E)

 
So

ci
al

 W
or

ke
rs

 H
C8

 (9
.0

FT
E)

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l T
he

ra
pi

st
 H

C8
 (1

.0
FT

E)

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 E

na
bl

em
en

t O
ff

ic
er

s 
H

C6
 (5

.0
FT

E)

Su
pp

or
t P

la
nn

er
/R

ev
ie

w
 O

ff
ic

er
 H

C6
 (5

.0
FT

E)

Te
le

ca
re

 A
dv

is
or

 H
C5

 (1
.0

FT
E)

D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
 H

C5
 (1

.F
TE

)

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
up

po
rt

 H
C3

 (1
.0

FT
E)

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

Te
am

 L
ea

de
r H

C1
0 

(1
.0

FT
E)

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 S
en

io
r P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
 H

C9
 (2

.0
FT

E)
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

So
ci

al
 W

or
ke

rs
 H

C8
 (7

.0
 F

TE
)

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 E

na
bl

em
en

t O
ff

ic
er

s 
H

C6
 (4

.0
FT

E)

Ac
qu

ire
d 

Br
ai

n 
In

ju
ry

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

na
bl

em
en

t O
ff

ic
er

 H
C6

 (1
.F

TE
)

Ac
qu

ire
d 

Br
ai

n 
In

ju
ry

 S
oc

ia
l W

or
ke

r  
H

C8
 (1

.0
FT

E)

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
up

po
rt

 H
C3

 (2
.0

FT
E)

PA
H

C5
 (1

.0
FT

E)

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 C

ar
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

25



Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
Ca

re
 

Pr
ov

is
io

n
H

C 
11

 (1
.0

FT
E)

 F
ix

ed
 te

rm
 

un
ti

l 3
1.

03
.1

4

CQ
C 

Re
gi

st
er

ed
 T

ea
m

 
M

an
ag

er
H

C1
0 

(1
.0

FT
E )

N
or

fo
lk

 H
ou

se
 S

up
po

rt
 W

or
ke

rs
 H

C4
 

(2
.8

0F
TE

) 
(C

ur
re

nt
ly

 c
on

tr
ac

te
d 

to
 p

ay
 fo

r n
ig

ht
 ti

m
e 

ca
re

 s
le

ep
 in

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 c

irc
a 

14
k 

pe
r a

nn
um

)
Pl

us
 c

os
t o

f c
le

an
in

g

D
ay

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
Te

am
 

M
an

ag
er

 H
C9

 (1
FT

E)

Ad
ul

t P
la

ce
m

en
t 

Sc
he

m
e

 H
C6

 (2
.8

3F
TE

)

Ca
re

rs
 L

ea
d

 H
C9

 (1
FT

E)
Se

lf 
D

ire
ct

ed
 S

up
po

rt
 L

ea
d

 H
C9

 (1
FT

E)

Co
m

pl
ex

 N
ee

ds
 T

ea
m

 
Le

ad
er

H
C7

 (1
.0

FT
E )

En
ab

le
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

Te
am

 L
ea

de
r

H
C7

 (1
.0

FT
E )

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

o-
or

di
na

to
r H

C6
 (3

FT
E)

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t W
or

ke
r

H
C5

 (3
.0

FT
E)

Su
pp

or
t W

or
ke

rs
 D

ay
 O

ps
H

C4
 (2

0.
5F

TE
)

CQ
C 

Re
gi

st
er

ed
 T

ea
m

 
M

an
ag

er
H

C1
0 

(1
.0

FT
E )

Eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

Fa
ci

lit
at

or
H

C7
 (1

FT
E)

 

D
riv

er
s 

an
d 

fit
te

rs
3F

TE
(H

C5
)

H
yg

ie
ne

 O
pe

ra
tiv

e
 H

C3
 (1

FT
E)

Re
ab

le
m

en
t T

ea
m

 
Le

ad
er

H
C7

 (1
.0

FT
E )

Re
ab

le
m

en
t a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
co

-o
rd

in
at

or
s 

H
C5

 (3
FT

E)
 

Re
ab

le
m

en
t S

up
po

rt
 

w
or

ke
rs

H
C3

 (1
5F

TE
)

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
up

po
rt

H
C3

 (1
.5

FT
E)

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
up

po
rt

H
C3

 (2
.0

FT
E)

D
ir

ec
t P

ro
vi

si
on

26



   

NEXT STAGE INTEGRATION - PROJECT OVERVIEW  

Why are we doing the project? 

The council currently commissions Wye Valley Trust and 2gether Foundation 
Trust to manage and provide a range of adult social care services on its behalf 
which are delivered through integrated arrangements.  Staff within adult social 
care are currently seconded from the council to both organisations.  These 
commissioning arrangements have to be reviewed because the existing 
arrangements will cease when the current S75 agreements (the contract used to 
support these arrangements) come to an end in September 2013 (WVT) and 
March 2014 (2gether). The Council also has to take account of the Care and 
Support Bill, the financial outlook and future transformation. 

The council, in conjunction with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), is 
considering how it can continue to deliver high quality integrated community 
health and social care through transforming our approach to give residents 
greater choice and control, enable better management of demand for services 
and identify more cost effective approaches to meet statutory responsibilities.  
This project is the framework to ensure that we achieve this goal. 

The financial stability of the council and Wye Valley Trust is under significant 
pressure.  The local authority has been particularly badly affected due to the way 
central government has changed the way funding is allocated. Government grant 
has been reduced by 33% since 2010 and is being reduced by a further 30% from 
now until 2015. Further funding announcements are expected in June to cover 
the 2015-16 year. Councils are limited by the amount they can increase Council 
Tax to address this reduction in government grant.  Herefordshire has also been 
slower than other councils in transforming services to date, and this, combined 
with the growth in older people means we have a savings plan (within ASC alone) 
of £7.9m to ensure we deliver a balanced budget of £48m in 2013/14, plus 
additional pressures of £3.9m to be recovered.  As part of these savings plans, the 
Next Stage Integration project needs to deliver £1m in 2013/14 and this includes 
a headcount reduction. 

27



   

What do we mean by Next Stage Integration? 

Integrated care pathways for service users is absolutely the right thing to do and 
this will remain at the heart of any new models of working in order to retain, and 
in some cases, make more effective the integration practices of health and social 
care teams along with other providers. 

Next Stage Integration does mean: 

P Multi-disciplinary teams working together to achieve better experiences and 
better outcomes for the service user 

P Focus on self directed support, choice and control 

P Co-location for those working closely together where possible 

P Shared team objectives and values to achieve a common aim 

P Access to information and systems to enable whole view of service user and 
reduce duplication 

It doesn’t mean: 

PEveryone is necessarily employed by the same organisation 

What will the project deliver?  

The project will develop alternative options for a new service delivery model 
which supports the objective of “Right care, right place, right time” within a 
budget Herefordshire can afford.   

This will mean that there may be different options for different services and 
functions and timescales required to implement any preferred option may mean 
an interim solution being put in place. 

Potential alternative delivery models may include all or some of these options for 
different functions and services: 

· Directly employed staff remain with the local authority 

28



   

· Re-commissioning different elements from a range of providers this could 
include the NHS, independent and third sector provider 

· Strategic partnership and pathways across different elements of service 
delivery 

· Employee mutual (Public service mutuals are organisations that have left 
the public sector but continue delivering public service. Employee control 
plays a significant role in their operation)  

What are the key milestones, timescales and deliverables? 

Date Milestones, Activity and Deliverables 

April 2013 Project kick off and appointment of project leads, reporting process 
and project management activities 

April/ May 2013 Staff workshops and stakeholder meetings to understand views on 
potential alternative models of delivery 

Early May 2013 Development of revised delivery model 

By end of May 2013 Draft model/options reviewed by key stakeholders 

Formal consultation on any headcount reduction 

June/July 2013 Public engagement 

18th June 2013 Approval process through Herefordshire Council Leadership team  

25th July 2013 Cabinet approval (where required) 

1st September 2013 Interim and/or full arrangements in place (relevant to each service 
solution) 

13th September 2013 End of s75 agreement with Wye Valley Trust  

31st March 2014 End of s75 agreement with 2gether Foundation Trust 

March 2014 Project close 

 
 

29



   

 

Who are the core project team? 

Lead officer and Project Sponsor Helen Coombes                                         
(Assistant Director of Adult Social Care) 

Project Manager Donna Etherton 

Project Consultant Grace Hampson 

Commissioning Lead Amy Pitt 

Communication Lead Carla Preston 

Finance Lead 

HR Lead 

Ruth Taylor 

Andy Bailey 

 

For further information on the project, please contact Donna Etherton 
(detherton@herefordshire.gov.uk) 

30



N
ex

t 
S

ta
g

e 
In

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

P
la

n
 –

 J
u

n
e 

20
13

 
 B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 
T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
cu

rr
en

tly
 c

om
m

is
si

on
s 

W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

N
H

S
 T

ru
st

 a
nd

 2
ge

th
er

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

T
ru

st
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
n 

its
 b

eh
al

f. 
 S

ta
ff 

w
ith

in
 a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 s
ec

on
de

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o 

bo
th

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
, 

al
th

ou
gh

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

he
se

 a
re

 to
 W

ye
 V

al
le

y 
N

H
S

 T
ru

st
 (

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
30

0 
fte

).
  

  T
he

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 W

ye
 V

al
le

y 
N

H
S

 T
ru

st
 a

re
 a

bo
ut

 to
 c

om
e 

to
 a

n 
en

d 
as

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l f

in
is

he
s 

on
 1

3th
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r.

  A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 b

ud
ge

ta
ry

 p
re

ss
ur

es
, g

ro
w

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 ta

ke
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f t
he

 C
ar

e 
an

d 
S

up
po

rt
 

B
ill

, t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ne
ed

s 
to

 tr
an

sf
or

m
 th

e 
w

ay
 a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

.  
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

lin
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

, t
he

 p
la

n 
is

 to
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

gr
ea

te
r 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

fo
r 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 lo
ok

 a
t d

iff
er

en
t w

ay
s 

of
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 
T

w
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

ie
ce

s 
of

 w
or

k 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n:

 
 1.

 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

 
T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Ju
ne

 a
nd

 S
ep

te
m

be
r:

 
 
· 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 c

ar
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

· 
C

om
m

un
ity

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t s

to
re

 
· 

A
du

lt 
pl

ac
em

en
t s

ch
em

e 
· 

N
or

fo
lk

 h
ou

se
 s

he
lte

re
d 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

· 
R

ea
bl

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
· 

D
ay

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
 T

he
 r

es
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 a

nd
 s

ki
lls

 a
re

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 in
 th

e 
rig

ht
 a

re
as

. 
 

2.
 

O
nc

e 
th

e 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
, t

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t a
nd

 c
ar

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill
 r

em
ai

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
nd

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

fiv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

.  
T

he
 p

la
n 

is
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
ch

oi
ce

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s.
 T

o 

31



do
 th

is
 w

e 
ne

ed
 to

 fi
nd

 o
ut

 w
ha

t p
eo

pl
e 

w
an

t a
nd

 n
ee

d,
 g

ro
w

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

o 
m

ee
t t

he
se

 w
an

ts
 a

nd
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 th
en

 p
ro

m
ot

e
 

pe
rs

on
al

is
at

io
n 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 c

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l. 
  C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

o
b

je
ct

iv
es

 
 T

o 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 th
at

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
ar

e 
fu

lly
 e

ng
ag

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 c
ha

ng
e 

i.e
., 

o
 

th
at

 th
ey

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

w
ha

t w
e 

ar
e 

do
in

g 
an

d 
w

hy
 w

e 
ar

e 
do

in
g 

it 
o

 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 a

sk
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
nd

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
ns

w
er

s 
qu

ic
kl

y 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 m
is

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

be
in

g 
de

liv
er

ed
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

 
us

er
s 

an
d 

ca
re

rs
 

 T
o 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 to
 r

es
po

nd
 to

 o
nl

in
e 

su
rv

ey
s 

to
 h

el
p 

us
 u

nd
er

st
an

d
 w

ha
t p

eo
pl

e 
w

an
t, 

w
ha

t t
he

 
m

ar
ke

t i
s 

ab
le

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

nd
 w

ha
t t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ca

n 
do

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

o 
m

ee
t c

us
to

m
er

 n
ee

d.
 

 T
o 

pu
ll 

to
ge

th
er

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 s
tr

an
ds

 o
f e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
fo

r 
di

ffe
re

nt
 a

ud
ie

nc
es

 s
o 

th
at

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
le

as
e 

is
 p

la
nn

ed
 a

nd
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
d.

 
 S

ta
ke

h
o

ld
er

s 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

 (
in

te
rn

al
) 

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

in
g 

ad
ul

t s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

(e
xt

er
na

l) 

S
ec

on
de

d 
st

af
f  

W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

N
H

S
 T

ru
st

 
S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 
C

ar
er

s 
T

ra
de

 U
ni

on
s 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 B
oa

rd
 

C
lin

ic
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

S
ta

ff 
(c

ou
nc

il,
 H

oo
pl

e)
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
 

 

S
ec

on
de

d 
st

af
f 

W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

N
H

S
 T

ru
st

 
S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 
C

ar
er

s 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

 
G

en
er

al
 p

ub
lic

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
P

ro
vi

de
rs

 
S

ta
ff 

H
C

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 

 

32



  K
ey

 M
es

sa
g

es
 (

fr
om

 th
e 

co
m

s 
st

ra
te

gy
) 

 
· 

W
e 

w
an

t t
o 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t p
eo

pl
e 

to
 li

ve
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 a

nd
 s

ta
y 

he
al

th
y 

fo
r 

as
 lo

ng
 a

s 
po

ss
ib

le
. 

 
· 

Lo
ok

in
g 

af
te

r 
ad

ul
ts

 a
t r

is
k 

is
 e

ve
ry

on
e’

s 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

nd
 w

e 
w

ill
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
 to

 lo
ok

 o
ut

 fo
r 

el
de

rly
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

s 
an

d 
ge

t i
nv

ol
ve

d 
in

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 s

up
po

rt
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
. 

 
· 

T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 th

at
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

w
ill

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
ll 

th
e 

he
lp

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 th
ey

 n
ee

d.
  T

he
y 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 r

ea
ss

es
se

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 th

ei
r 

ne
ed

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 b
e 

m
et

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
. 

 
· 

W
e 

w
an

t t
o 

he
lp

 p
eo

pl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 
· 

W
he

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ch
an

ge
, w

e 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 to

 m
ak

e 
su

re
 s

ou
nd

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 th

at
 c

au
se

 
m

in
im

al
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

r 
di

st
re

ss
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

. 
 

· 
T

o 
en

su
re

 p
ro

pe
r 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, o
ur

 fo
cu

s 
ha

s 
to

 b
e 

on
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

 g
oo

d 
ou

tc
om

es
 

fo
r 

ou
r 

re
si

de
nt

s.
  W

e 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
w

ay
 w

e 
do

 th
in

gs
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

. 
 

· 
W

e 
ne

ed
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 p

eo
pl

e 
to

 ta
ke

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

f t
he

ir 
ow

n 
su

pp
or

t. 
 

· 
A

ll 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

ad
ul

ts
 w

ill
 w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

, a
cc

ur
at

e 
so

ur
ce

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

  

33



 A
ct

iv
it

y 
W

h
en

 
S

ta
ke

h
o

ld
er

s 
C

o
m

s 
o

u
tp

u
ts

 
W

h
o

 
K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

  

S
ta

ff 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
be

gi
ns

 o
n 

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

na
l r

es
tr

uc
tu

re
 

   

6 
Ju

ne
 

6 
Ju

ne
 

      

S
ec

on
de

 d
 s

ta
ff 

W
V

N
H

S
T

 
      

Le
tte

r 
D

ro
p -

in
 s

es
si

on
 

   

A
nd

y 
    

W
e 

ha
ve

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
w

ay
 w

e 
do

 
th

in
gs

 to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 w
e 

ca
n 

co
nt

in
ue

 
to

 m
ee

t p
eo

pl
e’

s 
ne

ed
s 

no
w

 a
nd

 in
 

th
e 

fu
tu

r e
. 

 T
he

re
 a

re
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

st
af

f  
to

 
be

co
m

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 n

ew
 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

in
g 

A
S

C
 -

 p
ub

lic
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t b

eg
in

s*
 

*S
ee

 P
ub

lic
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t 
S

tr
at

eg
y  

 

7 
Ju

ne
 

6 
Ju

ne
 

G
en

er
al

 p
ub

lic
 

S
ta

ff  
S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

* 
C

ar
er

s*
 

P
ro

vi
de

rs
* 

Lo
ca

l m
em

be
rs

 
 

P
re

ss
 R

el
ea

se
 

C
or

e 
br

ie
f  

O
nl

in
e 

 s
ur

ve
y 

F
A

Q
 

M
em

be
rs

 b
rie

f 
Le

tte
r 

to
 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 
Le

tte
r 

to
 

pr
ov

id
er

s  
P

en
 P

ic
tu

re
s 

E
as

y 
re

ad
 

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 le

tte
r 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 

LD
 

C
ar

la
 

C
ar

la
 

R
ic

ha
rd

 
R

ic
ha

rd
 

C
ar

la
 

A
ll 

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
 A

m
y 

 La
ur

a 
F

er
gu

so
n 

N
ee

d 
to

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
n 

do
 th

in
gs

 
di

ffe
re

nt
ly

 
W

an
t t

o 
ca

pt
ur

e 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

as
pi

ra
tio

ns
, s

ee
 w

ha
t’s

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
in

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
, a

nd
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

gr
ow

th
 in

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t p

la
ce

 to
 b

rid
ge

 g
ap

s  
E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 g

et
 in

vo
lv

ed
 a

nd
 

ha
ve

 a
 s

ay
.  

A
S

C
 a

ffe
ct

s 
al

l o
f u

s 
at

 
so

m
e 

st
ag

e 
in

 o
ur

 li
ve

s.
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 

ca
bi

ne
t (

25
 J

ul
y)

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
en

d 
of

 p
ub

lic
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
st

af
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n  

17
 J

ul
y 

(r
ep

or
t 

pu
bl

is
he

d)
 

 

G
en

er
al

 p
ub

lic
 

 S
ta

ff 
S

ec
on

de
d 

st
af

f 
 S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 
C

ar
er

s 

P
re

ss
 r

el
ea

se
  

 C
or

e 
br

ie
f 

B
rie

fin
g 

 Le
tte

rs
 a

nd
 

br
ie

fin
gs

 to
 

C
ar

la
 

 C
ar

la
 

?  A
ll  

 

P
re

-C
ab

in
et

, o
ut

lin
e 

w
ha

t i
s 

be
in

g 
pr

op
os

ed
. 

P
os

t-
ca

bi
ne

t, 
pu

bl
is

h 
de

ci
si

on
 a

nd
 le

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

kn
ow

 w
ha

t h
ap

pe
ns

 
ne

xt
.  

34



P
ro

vi
de

rs
 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
an

d 
 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 
F

A
Q

 w
eb

 s
ite

 
S

oc
ia

l m
ed

ia
, 

po
in

tin
g 

to
  P

R
 

an
d 

F
A

Q
 

   C
ar

la
 

N
ew

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
be

gi
ns

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
 

S
ta

ff 
C

or
e 

br
ie

f 
C

ar
la

 
 

T
en

de
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
be

gi
ns

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
 

G
en

er
al

 p
ub

lic
 

P
ro

vi
de

rs
 a

nd
 

po
te

nt
ia

l p
ro

vi
de

rs
 

Lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

st
af

f  

P
re

ss
 r

el
ea

se
 

S
oc

ia
l m

ed
ia

 
 E

nC
or

e  

C
ar

la
 

C
ar

la
 

 C
ar

la
 

C
ou

nc
il 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
to

 g
et

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

. 

T
w

ee
t t

o 
P

R
 a

nd
 p

oi
nt

 to
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

po
rt

al
. 

C
on

si
de

r 
ca

se
 s

tu
dy

 fo
r 

E
nC

or
e 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
st

af
f  

se
tti

ng
 u

p 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 

 

35



36



Key themes from public events 

 

Fear that services will stop on September 

The key concern/ question amongst the service user, carer and parent groups were that services 
were going to stop or be interrupted when the current contract with Wye Valley Trust ceases in 
September. This fear was compounded, as to be expected, by worried staff affected by this 
process giving incorrect information and adding to the concerns of service users, carers and 
parents. 

Assurances were given based on the message from Cllr. Powell.  

 

Initial communications  

Many concerns were raised about the initial communication: 

· Some service users cannot read and require a carer to read it to them  
· Some have difficulties in understanding contents even when read to them and  
· Most do not have capacity to use email or internet independently, if they have queries 

regarding her letter?  
· All the letter did, when explained to my service users, was to make them very scared that 

services would be stopped, changed or altered to 'Live independently' as described in the 
letter  

Assurances were given that a new, clearer communication will follow and in addition the Council 
has a commitment to set up representative groups to feed into the current process and how 
services will be shaped in the future.  

 

Personal Budgets and Assessments 

A lot has been made about people buying services using PB's but there are very few currently 
receiving one. For many they cannot see the proposed benefits to them nor have many local 
examples of people using PB's and DP's in a positive way to draw on, demonstrating choice and 
control over their lives. There is currently no word of mouth and few good news stories to promote 
the change in the client groups. 

But the biggest issue is around those that have been through the assessment process, and the 
time scales taken for this to happen. In a number of cases, as communicated at the meetings, 
this has taken many months; even years to complete or they are still ongoing. 

At the meetings it was communicated that the council is aware of the difficulties around the 
assessment process and a separate piece of work is addressing this. It was also considered if 
this could also be looked at by the representative groups moving forward. 

Also a suggestion that the manager at Marshfields could be used as an ambassador for 
promoting not only other ways of working but also PB’s and their use from his experience. 

 

Timescales for change 

Many were concerned that all the projects that seem to be running alongside each other could not 
be done in the timescales given. Whilst this was part of a misunderstanding around what the 
September date meant in reality, it was still a concern that the assessment process and lack of a 
market place for other services still needed to be revised as part of the process. 

 

 

37



Worried that good services are going? 

Again where good work has been done by current services it is a concern that by having new 
providers, services would be starting all over again and mistakes from the past were to be 
repeated. All the services spoken to so far (APS, Day Centres and esp Norfolk house) saw this as 
a big issue and in some instances and very emotive one. 

Many are uncomfortable that those running these projects or making decisions do not understand 
the large amount of change that is being required to happen, can be done within the timescales 
proposed. 

It was also highlighted that there is no other service provision or choice in Herefordshire which is 
gone into in more detail below. 

Again the message that we want to work together moving forward was given. 

 

Reassurance sought about current levels of provision remaining 

There were concerns raised that after assessments and moves to PB’s that hours or time was 
being cut or budget provision no longer covered what the service user received previously. An 
example of this was given using 'Pack it' which Cllr Kenyon is involved with and a service users 
days being cut from 5 days to 4 days as that's all his budget can afford. This was one of a 
number of similar concerns.  

This fear was also compounded by the worry of a cut in hours/ support. This is a common 
concern with those who currently attend Day Centres who see that whilst the service will/ may still 
be there post September 14th fear that the actual support given will be less due to less staff being 
available following current staff reduction plans. 

Some carer groups were also every vocal in saying that current provision is very cost effective 
when compared to ‘Individual outings’ and there are concerns that PB allocation may no longer 
cover these activities or future planned services 

The message was given that we have a duty of care to the service user and representative 
groups will work these issues. 

 

This is just privatisation 

One of the phrases heard often is that this is just about 'Privatisation by the backdoor'. It is seen 
that the council wants to 'Wash it's hands of services and service users'  

There is a large mistrust of private companies who need to make a profit being cheaper or being 
able to offer the same services for less money.  

The message given to this was that the council is currently restricted in what services it can 
provide and how it can do it. This process is not a closed one to just private companies, but is 
open to charities, 3rd sector and strong emphasis on staff mutual’s. The audience was made 
aware of the steps the council is taking to provide support for any staff or carers who wish start a 
mutual/ social enterprise. 

 

Lack of market place for other options/ services 

It was stated when ever giving the message that we wanted to offer more choice and control, that 
Herefordshire currently does not have a market place of services to support this. Many may well 
be happy with being able to shop around and find alternative provision but currently it is 
recognised that this isn’t available. Again a fear of losing something without another option was 
raised. 

The message given was that this was understood and this is just the start of a process. Again 
representative groups were asked to feed into this. It is also hoped that other pieces of work 

38



which are ongoing will start to highlight the benefits of PB’s and DP’s as well as promoting other 
services in Herefordshire. 

 

Fear of change 

For all fear of change is a major issue. What came through strongly was that service users felt 
‘Attached’ to their current service and didn’t want or need change. For most it was their only outlet 
for social activities, to meet with friends and highlighted that they had formed strong trust 
relationships with staff and carers. Disruption to this or any cut in hours/ provision was seen as 
majorly detrimental to the service users and to home life where parents and carers are already 
under pressure. 

Again it was reiterated that the council has a duty of care and we want to work with services and 
those using them as we move forward with the project. 

 

39



40



Herefordshire County Council 
 

Next Stage Integration Project 
 

Emerging Themes from Team Workshops – April/May 2013 
 

 
Introduction and Background 
 
 !"#$%&"'("&)*"$%%$+,*-*+&!"&'"-$+$,*"&)*"#%'.*!!"+**/*/"&'"0%1+,"&)*"2*.&1'+"
34" ,%**-*+&"51&)"67*"8$99*7":;2"<%=!&"&'"$".'+.9=!1'+"1+"2*#&*-0*%">?@A"
$+/"$9!'"&'"-$+$,*"&)*".)$+,*!"+**/*/"&'"0%1+,"$0'=&""".'!&"%*/=.&1'+!"
$!!'.1$&*/"51&)"&)*";*%*('%/!)1%*"B'=+&7"B'=+.19"!)'%&($99"1+"0=/,*&!"1+">?@A"
$+/"0*7'+/"C"$"!*%1*!"'("-**&1+,!D5'%E!)'#!")$F*"0**+")*9/"51&)" /=9&"2'.1$9"
B$%*"&*$-!DG+&*,%$&*/"&*$-!"$!!'.1$&*/"51&)"&)*"2*.&1'+"34" ,%**-*+&H""
"
<)*"5'%E!)'#!"1+F'9F*/"$"!*%1*!"'("-**&1+,!"1+"5)1.)"1+('%-$&1'+"5$!",1F*+"'+"
&)*"('99'51+,I""
"

 <)*"%*$!'+!"('%"*+/1+,"&)*"2*.&1'+"34" ,%**-*+&"$+/"5)$&"&)1!"5199"-*$+"
('%";*%*('%/!)1%*"B'=+&7"B'=+.19"J;BBK""!&$((H"G*""<)*"!*.'+/-*+&"'("
!&$(("5199"*+/"'+"@A&)"2*#&*-0*%">?@A"$+/"$99";BB"!&$(("5199"0*"&$E*+"
0$.E"1+&'"&)*"/1%*.&"*-#9'7-*+&"$+/"-$+$,*-*+&"'("&)*"B'=+.19H"

 <)*".'+&1+=1+,"*-#)$!1!"'+"1+&*,%$&1'+"51&)")*$9&)"#%'(*!!1'+!"$+/"
&*$-!"$!"&)*"-*$+!"('%"0*!&"/*91F*%1+,"$+"*((*.&1F*"#$&)5$7"'(".$%*"('%"
!*%F1.*"=!*%!""

 <)*"!1,+1(1.$+&"!)'%&($99"1+"(=+/1+,"($.1+,";BB"$+/"&)*"+**/"('%""%*/=.&1'+"
1+"!&$(("+=-0*%!"&',*&)*%"51&)"&)*"+**/"&'".'+!1/*%"/*91F*%7"'("!*%F1.*!"
1+"/1((*%*+&"5$7!"1+"'%/*%"&'"!&%*$-91+*"#$&)5$7!"'(".$%*H"

 <)*"+*L&"!&*#!"$+/"&1-*!.$9*!"('%"/*.1!1'+!"51&)1+"&)*"B'=+.19""
"
2&$(("5*%*"$!E*/"&'",1F*"&)*1%"F1*5!"%*"!&%*+,&)!"$+/"5*$E+*!!*!"'("&)*1%".=%%*+&"
!*%F1.*!"$+/"&'".'+&%10=&*"$+7"F1*5!"&)*7")$F*"'+"5)$&"-1,)&"0*"/'+*"&'"0%1+,"
$0'=&"-'%*"*((*.&1F*"5$7!"'("/*91F*%1+,"&)*1%"!*%F1.*!"$+/"0%1+,"$0'=&".'!&"
%*/=.&1'+!H"
"
<)*"('99'51+,"1!"$"!=--$%7"'("&)*"E*7"&)*-*!"$+/".'--*+&!"-$/*"07"!&$(("$!"
#$%&"'("&)1!"*L*%.1!*H"<)*".'--*+&!"$%*",%'=#*/"&',*&)*%"=+/*%"$"+=-0*%"'("E*7"
$%*$!H"
 
Integrated Team Working 
<)*"-$M'%1&7"'("+*1,)0'=%)''/"&*$-!"$,%**/"&)*%*"5$!"%*$9"0*+*(1&"&'"5'%E1+,"
&',*&)*%"51&)")*$9&)".'99*$,=*!"$!"&)1!"%*!=9&*/"1+"1-#%'F*/"=+/*%!&$+/1+,"'("
%'9*!"$+/"%*!#'+!10191&1*!"$+/"&)1!"%*!=9&*/"1+"$"-'%*")'91!&1."$+/"!-''&)"
/*91F*%7"'("!*%F1.*"&'"!*%F1.*"=!*%!H"B1&7"2'=&)"<*$- )$F*"%*$997"*L.*99*/"$&"&)1!"
$+/"+'5")$F*"%*,=9$%"NO<"-**&1+,!"1+F'9F1+,"PQ!"(%'-"*$.)"'("&)*"R"#%$.&1.*!"
&)*7"!*%F*"'+"$"%'&$"0$!1!H""
"

41



 !"#$#%&'"$&()*!+,%-.%-$#/&#$#/%01$(&"%$,!&-$+&"$.%*%1&,,2$,!+$&*-$#/%1%$+%1%$
+&0#0*.$,0"#"$34#$#/0"$+&"$,%5%,,%-$&.&0*"#$#/%$+!1)0*.$61!(%""%"$0*$6,&(%$7!1$#/%$
(!4*#2$
$
 !"#$#%&'"$7%,#$#/%1%$+&"$1%&,$3%*%70#$71!'$3%0*.$(!8,!(&#%-$0*$!770(%"$"!$
'4,#0-0"(06,0*&12$#%&'$+!1)0*.$+&"$7&(0,0#&#%-$&*-$%5%*$'!1%$71!'$!6%*$!770(%"$
+/0(/$(&*$7&(0,0#&#%$(,!"%1$+!1)0*.9$
$
:;$"2"#%'"$+%1%$*!#$<!0*#$+0#/$/%&,#/$&*-$#/0"$+&"$"%%*$&"$&*$!3"#&(,%$#!$<!0*#$
&*-$(,!"%$+!1)0*.9$$
$
;%&'"$+!1)0*.$0*$141&,$,!(&#0!*"$(!''%*#%-$#/&#$#/%01$#0'%$+!4,-$3%$3%##%1$
4"%-$07$'!30,%$&*-$7,%=03,%$+!1)0*.$&11&*.%'%*#"$&*-$7&(0,0#0%"$+%1%$0*#1!-4(%-9$
>411%*#,2$"#&77$/&5%$#!$1%#41*$#!$#/%$!770(%?$+/0(/$(&*$'%&*$&$@A$'0*4#%$<!41*%2$?$
0*$!1-%1$#!$0*64#$&""%""'%*#$-!(4'%*#&#0!*9$
$
B%0./3!41/!!-$#%&'"$(!''%*#%-$46!*$#/%$-0770(4,#2$0*$.&0*0*.$&((%""$#!$&*-$&$
1%"6!*"%$71!'$ %*#&,$C%&,#/$#%&'"9$D*(%$0*$(!*#&(#$?$#/%01$&-50(%$&*-$"466!1#$0"$
0*5&,4&3,%$34#$.&0*0*.$&((%""$(411%*#,2$1%E401%"$1%7%11&,$50&$&$FG$&*-$/%*(%$
#/%1%$0"$&*$0*%50#&3,%$-%,&29$H!'%$(,&1070(&#0!*$0"$*%%-$1%$#/%01$(1#0#%10&$7!1$
&((%""0*.$"%150(%"9$
$
H&7%.4&1-0*.$&-50(%$&*-$"466!1#$+&"$5&,4%-$34#$#/%$61!(%""%"$(!4,-$&,"!$3%$
1%'!#%$&*-$0*%770(0%*#9$
$
H!'%$#%&'"$/&5%$/0./$,%5%,"$!7$&.%*(2$"#&77$$+/0(/$&1%$"%%*$#!$3%$(!"#,2$&*-$
0*%770(0%*#$+0#/$,!+$,%5%,"$!7$(!*#0*40#2$7!1$"%150(%$4"%1"9$
$
;/%$1!,%$!7$#/%$I!(&,$J((%""$G!0*#"$+&"$&661%(0&#%-$34#$#/%$61!(%""$7!1$"(1%%*0*.$
+&"$7,&+%-$&*-$0*&((41&#%9$:#$+&"$7%,#$#/&#$&$#1&0*0*.$61!.1&''%$+&"$*%%-%-$7!1$
#/%$"#&77$0*5!,5%-$!1$E4&,070%-$"#&77$0*5!,5%-$0*$#/%$"(1%%*0*.$61!(%""9$
$
K%&3,%'%*#$"%150(%"$&1%$3%0*.$-0,4#%-$+0#/$4"%1"$3,!()0*.$#/%$"2"#%'$7!1$46$#!$
LMNLO$+%%)"$1&#/%1$#/&*$#/%$"0=$+%%)"$61%"(103%-9$;/%1%$0"$&$"/!1#&.%$!7$$6,&(%"$
#!$'!5%$!*#!9$K%&3,%'%*#$"#&#%$#/&#$#/%2$&1%$'&)0*.$&$1%&,$-077%1%*(%$#!$#/%$,!*.$
#%1'$&30,0#2$!7$4"%1"$#!$'&0*#&0*$0*-%6%*-%*(%9$C!+%5%1$#/%2$&1%$$61!50-0*.$
6&,,0&#05%$&*-$,!*.%1$#%1'$(&1%$0*$&661!610&#%,2$-4%$#!$&$,&()$!7$!#/%1$"%150(%"9$
$
Assessment, Review and Approval Processes   
 
;/%1%$+&"$4*&*0'!4"$&.1%%'%*#$#/&#$#/%$(411%*#$&""%""'%*#$61!(%""$+&"$#!!$
,!*.$&*-$1%6%#0#05%$&*-$6!"%-$1%&,$61!3,%'"$7!1$"%150(%$4"%1"$0*$.!0*.$#/1!4./$
#/%$61!(%""9$;/%$61!(%""$+&"$#!!$#0'%$(!*"4'0*.9$$
$
H#&77$7%,#$#/&#$#/%$+/!,%$61!(%""$!7$&661!5&,?$+/0(/$0*5!,5%-$1%6%&#%-$1%7%11&,$#!$
'&*&.%1"$7!1$&661!5&,$!*$"%(#0!*"$!7$&""%""'%*#$+&"$-%'!#05&#0*.$&*-$
-%")0,,0*.9$;/%$0'6&(#$+&"$#/&#$#/%2$7%,#$4*#14"#%-9$;/%$0'6&(#$7!1$"%150(%$4"%1"$
+&"$.1%&#$0*$"!$7&1$&"$#/%1%$+%1%$1%&,$-%,&2"$0*$&661!5&,$9$$$
$

42



Structure and Organisation 
 
 !"#$%&#'($'#)#$#*+)#((#,$-./-$0#/1-.$./,$2-/3#4$!%#)5$&4$"/46$'/6($/4,$-.#)#$
./,$7##4$$/$,&"&48&-&!4$&4$-.#$)!1#$/4,$&4918#4:#$!9$(!:&/1$'!)3#)(;$<.#)#$4##,($
-!$7#$/$)#$7/1/4:&4=$/::!),&4=$-!$(!"#$(-/99$"#"7#)(;$
$
>!$%&#'($'#)#$#*+)#((#,$/7!8-$-.#$-#/"($=#!=)/+.&:/1$(+)#/,$/4,$+!+81/-&!4$
(#)%#,$76$#/:.$-#/";$
$
<.#)#$'#)#$(!"#$%&#'($#*+)#((#,$-./-$(!"#$!9$-.#$:#4-)/1$-#/"$984:-&!4($
(.!81,$7#$,&(+#)(#,$&4-!$-.#$4#&=.7!8).!!,$-#/"($#=$(/9#=8/),&4=$?$)#%&#'&4=$
&4$!),#)$-!$(-)#/"1&4#$+)!:#((#($/4,$)#,8:#$:!498(&!4;$$
$
 !"#$-#/"($&4:18,&4=$,/6$(#)%&:#($/)#$'/)6$!9$7#&4=$:!4-)/:-#,$!8-$/1-.!8=.$
!-.#)($./%#$(!"#$=!!,$&,#/($/7!8-$&4:!"#$=#4#)/-&!4$#=$9)!"$-)/&4&4=$/4,$
/,%&:#$-!$48)(&4=$.!"#($#-:;$
$
Staff Retention  
 
 -/99$:!""#4-#,$8+!4$-.#$+!!)$)/-#($!9$+/6$'.#4$:!"+/)#,$-!$4#&=.7!8)&4=$
:!84-&#(;$
$
<.#6$/1(!$+!&4-$-!$-.#$/74!)"/116$1!4=$+)!:#((#($'.&:.$-.#6$/)#$'!)3&4=$'&-.$
'.&:.$,#"!-&%/-#$(-/99;$
$
<.#)#$'#)#$(#%#)/1$:!""#4-($"/,#$/7!8-$-.#$1/:3$!9$!++!)-84&-&#($/4,$(8++!)-$
:8))#4-16$9!)$84@8/1&9&#,$(-/99$-!$-/3#$-)/&4&4=$/4,$-.#)#9!)#$7#:!"#$@8/1&9&#,$
(-/99;$<.&($'!81,$+)!%&,#$/$)#:)8&-"#4-$-)/:3$9!)$-.#$98-8)#$/4,$)#,8:#$-.#$
)#1&/4:#$8+!4$/=#4:6$(-/99;;$
$
Day Opportunities Staff/Services 
 
 -/99$'#)#$/11$:!4:#)4#,$-./-$-.#$&"+/:-$!9$+1/44#,$:./4=#($!4$(#)%&:#$8(#)($/4,$
-.#&)$:/)#)($'/($-/3#4$&4-!$/::!84-$/4,$./4,1#,$(#4(&-&%#16$/($-.#)#$'#)#$(!"#$
%#)6$%814#)/71#$&4,&%&,8/1($&4%!1%#,$'.&:.$"/6$)#(81-$&4$7)#/3,!'4$!9$
+1/:#"#4-($
$
 -/99$/)#$%#)6$+)!8,$!9$-.#$&44!%/-&%#$(#)%&:#($-.#6$+)!%&,#$/4,$,!$4!-$'/4-$-!$
1!(#$-.#$)#+8-/-&!4$'.&:.$./($7##4$78&1-$8+$4!-$A8(-$1!:/116$78-$!4$/$4/-&!4/1$
7/(&($$
$
B/6$(#)%&:#$(-/99$+1/6$/4$&"+!)-/4-$)!1#$&4$/1#)-&4=$+!-#4-&/1$(/9#=8/),&4=$&((8#($
/4,$-.#)#$4##,($-!$7#$:!4(&,#)/-&!4$-!$.!'$-.&($/1#)-$&($"/&4-/&4#,$&4$-.#$4#'$
(-)8:-8)#$
$
B/6$(#)%&:#($+)!%&,#$%/18#$9!)$"!4#6$/4,$/)#$1!'$:!(-$9!)$-.#$)/4=#$!9$(#)%&:#($
+)!%&,#,$$$$
$

43



 !"##$"%&$'&%($)*++*,-$!.$&/0%"1&$12",-&$03!$).3+4$+*5&$!.$0&$*,'.+'&4$*,$
6+",,*,-$!2&$12",-&7$*,$.%4&%$!.$7"#&-3"%4$37&%7$",4$1"%&%7$"7$/312$"7$6.77*0+&$$
$
Consultation 
8++$7!"##$)&%&$"66%&1*"!*'&$!2"!$7./&.,&$2"4$-.,&$!.$/&&!$)*!2$!2&/$",4$).3+4$
)&+1./&$.!2&%$.66.%!3,*!*&7$!.$0&$/.%&$*,'.+'&4$*,$6+",,&4$12",-&79$
$
:"1&$!.$#"1&$/&&!*,-7$"%&$6%&#&%%&4$%"!2&%$!2",$&/"*+$1.//3,*1"!*.,79$
$
;",($7!"##$'.*1&4$!2&$4&7*%&$!.$0&$*,'.+'&4$*,$12",-&7<$)2*12$"##&1!$!2&/$",4$#.%$
!2&*%$'*&)7$!.$0&$!"5&,$*,!.$"11.3,!9$
$
$
=%"1&$>"/67.,$
$
?@!2$;"($?ABC$
$
$$$
$
$
$
$
$

44



 

 

 
 
 

HEREFORDSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 
 

Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: 11th July 2013 
 
 
 

Subject: 
 

Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group Urgent Care 
Review  
 

Presented By:  
Dr Ritesh Dua GP Lead Urgent Care 
Maria Hardy Clinical Programme Manager 
 

 
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT: 

 
 
To inform the committee of Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Groups Adult Urgent Care 
engagement and communication plans. 
 

 
KEY POINTS: 
 

· Context 
· Public engagement 
· Timescales  
· Developing an Urgent Care service delivery model 

 
RECOMMENDATION TO THE COMMITTEE: 

 
 
The Committee is asked to:  
 
• Note the report and comment 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM 9

45



 

 

Introduction  
 
Urgent care is not easily understood and can be confusing to members of the public. This is 
why Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) wants to introduce a model of adult 
urgent care services that: 
 

· Are simple to understand, to access and to navigate  
· Provide as much care as possible, locally, for the majority of people 
· Support people’s options for self-care of their health need or long term condition 
· Ensure specialist care with high quality outcomes is easily accessible for the smaller 

number of patients needing these services.   
 
Urgent care is the range of responses that health and care services provide to people who 
require urgent advice, care, support, treatment or diagnosis. We want urgent care to focus on 
ensuring the access to services, rather than to buildings or structures, and to ensure this is 
provided across the county, including in the most rural areas. 
  
Proposals are being developed by doctors and other clinical colleagues to ensure that 
patients receive both the best experience of urgent health care services and the best results, 
now and in the future.  
 
A dedicated project group, linked to a local multi-organisation Urgent Care Delivery Board, 
has been tasked with creating a strategy for the delivery of urgent health care services in 
Herefordshire. Part of this work is to look at community based care, including the Minor 
Injuries Units (MIUs) and to develop urgent health care services based on patient needs, 
quality, equity, access and cost effectiveness.  
 
A key element of developing urgent health care services is to ensure we embed peoples 
views of what matters into the strategy. To achieve that we need to ensure that the local 
community of Herefordshire and wider stakeholders are well informed about the opportunities 
for involvement in the process of developing adult urgent care services. 
 
An engagement document has been developed which outlines: 
 

· What we mean by urgent care; 
· the current model of care 
· how to get involved  
· the national themes that have emerged from the Department of Health consultation 

 
 
Current Situation 
 
The current urgent care system is generally viewed by patients and the public as 
complicated, and confusing; it is not always easy to know where to go for advice, support or 
treatment. Health focused urgent care in Herefordshire is currently delivered by the following: 
 

46



 

 

· 24 GP Practices 
· 4 Minor Injury Units (MIUs) 
· 26 Community Pharmacies 
· 1 Walk-in Centre 
· GP Out of Hours Service (Primecare) 
· Accident and Emergency Hospital Departments 
· West Midlands Ambulance Service 
· 2 Dental Access Centres 
· Mental health services (2Gether) 
· NHS Direct/111 

 
Alongside these health facing services there are a range of local authority adult social care 
services in addition to the contribution from the private, independent and third sector 
organisations.  All statutory agencies currently delivering urgent care services have 
discussed the essential components for the delivery of an integrated service. They want to 
create a model that will provide consistent care across the patient pathway – from beginning 
to end. 
 
Nationally there is considerable focus on the importance of effective; evidence based 
emergency and urgent care services. Given the often serious nature of patient need, it is vital 
that this system is responsive, works effectively, minimises distress to patients and delivers 
effective clinical care when required.  
 
Urgent care is directly linked to A&E departments and many of its performance measures – 
from 4 hour waits to ambulance turnaround times. The wider system has a direct impact on 
the patient journey, which includes the availability of other points of care before and after 
hospital. In recent months, there has been a national focus on this emotive area of health 
and Herefordshire has experienced increased demand for A&E services in line with the 
national picture. 
 
The contract for the Herefordshire Out of Hours GP service and the Walk-In Centre will come 
to an end in 2014, the views and experiences of those using the current services will enable 
commissioning of future services focused on patient centred outcomes.    
 
Next Steps 
 
The CCG want to involve the local community of Herefordshire and wider stakeholders in the 
shaping of services to ensure a high performing, effective urgent care system. A series of 
public events across Herefordshire to discuss urgent care services and how they all work 
together will help us to better understand:   
 

· When, where and how patients decide to seek urgent care advice and treatment.   
· What are the functions patients and carers expect as part of an urgent care system 
· What outcomes do patients and carers want/need from the urgent care system  

 

47



 

 

Working with HealthWatch during September 2013 we will hold six engagement events, one 
in each of the main towns across Herefordshire; Ledbury, Leominster, Ross-on-Wye, Kington 
and Bromyard, and in the city of Hereford. Each event will be led by one of our CCG GP 
members. We will also work with the 3rd sector and other interest groups to establish 
opportunities for presenting at specific events in addition to the six locality based events. The 
voice of health and social care professionals including social workers, community pharmacy, 
dentists, opticians etc., are essential so we will also be organising additional events for the 
wider health and social care professional community. 
  
 
Conclusion 
 
The current changes facing the NHS nationally and the local implications associated with 
delivering integrated care within a demanding and rapidly changing environment are among 
the most pressing challenges facing clinical commissioners. Herefordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group hosted a professional workshop on 25 th April 2013 of all agencies 
currently delivering urgent care services in Herefordshire, these local clinicians articulated 
the outcomes of a successful local integrated service; 

· No confusion of what to do, who to call or where to go 
· A joined up and co-ordinated system, with a localities focus where it is safe to do so 
· Safe, responsive and a high quality service 
· Self-care, prevention, anticipatory care and patient empowerment 
· Patient and public involvement 
· Monitoring of urgent and emergency care services 
· Knowledge to influence spend on services 
· Integrated mental and physical health care for all – to provide a seamless service at 

the point of use. 
 
Drawing together the information and views gathered during engagement discussions and 
combining it with clinical views about quality, safe and sustainable services the Clinical 
Commissioning Group will be in a position to develop a preferred option for Herefordshire 
Urgent Care Services.   
 

48



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Penrose,  
Democratic Services Officer on: (01432) 383690 

 
  

 

MEETING: HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 JULY 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – LAW, GOVERNANCE 
AND RESILIENCE 

 

1. Classification 
Open. 

2. Key Decision 
This is not a key decision. 

3. Wards Affected 

County-wide.  

4. Purpose 

To consider the Committee’s work programme. 
. 

5. Recommendation(s) 

 THAT: the work programme as appended be noted, subject to any comments the 
Committee wished to make. 

6. Key Points Summary 

6.1  The Committee is asked to note its work programme and to note progress on current work. 

7. Alternative Options 

7.1 It is for the Committee to determine its work programme as it sees fit to reflect the priorities 
facing Herefordshire.  Any number of subjects could be included in the work programme.  
However, the Committee does need to be selective and ensure that the work programme is 
focused on the key issues, realistic and deliverable within the existing resources available. 

8. Reasons for Recommendations 

8.1 The Committee needs to develop a manageable work programme to ensure that scrutiny is 
focused, effective and produces clear outcomes. 

AGENDA ITEM 10

49



 

9. Introduction and Background 

9.1 An outline work programme only is appended for this meeting.  This is because the 
programme is under continuous review. 

10. Key Considerations 

10.1 The work programme needs to focus on the key issues of concern and be manageable 
allowing for urgent items or matters that have been called-in. 

11. Community Impact 

11.1 The topics selected for scrutiny should have regard to what matters to the County’s 
residents. 

12. Equality and Human Rights 

12.1 The topics selected need to have regard for equality and Human rights issues. 
 

13. Financial Implications 

13.1 The cost of the work of the Scrutiny Committee will have to be met within existing 
resources.  It should be noted the costs of running scrutiny will be subject to an assessment 
to support appropriate processes. 

14. Legal Implications 

14.1 The Council is required to deliver an Overview and Scrutiny function. 

15. Risk Management 

15.1 There is a reputational risk to the Council if the Overview & Scrutiny function does not 
operate effectively.   The arrangements for the development of the work programme should 
help mitigate this risk. 

16. Consultees 

16.1 Following initial consultations on topics for scrutiny with Directors and Members of the 
Cabinet, all members of the Council were invited to suggest items for scrutiny.  

17. Appendices 

17.1 An outline work programme for the Committee. 

 Executive Rolling Programme (as at the time of going to print). 

18. Background Papers 

18.1 None identified. 

50



HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
ITEMS IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAME 

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
 

12 SEPTEMBER 2013 at 7pm 

Recovery Plan for Children 
Safeguarding 

To receive a progress report on the Action Plan. 

Health Watch To receive a progress report on Health Watch 

Work Programme To consider the Committees Work Programme 

11 OCTOBER 2013 

Recovery Plan for Children 
Safeguarding 

To receive a progress report on the Action Plan. 

Strategic Plan for Delivering Adult 
Services 

To consider a quarterly report containing a schedule of 
performance reports outlining the savings that are being 
achieved through the Strategic Plan. (July12) 

Work Programme To consider the Committees Work Programme 

7 NOVEMBER 2013 at 7pm 

Recovery Plan for Children 
Safeguarding 

To receive a progress report on the Action Plan. 

Work Programme To consider the Committees Work Programme 

6 DECEMBER 2013 

Recovery Plan for Children 
Safeguarding 

To receive a progress report on the Action Plan. 

Work Programme To consider the Committees Work Programme 
 
 

Children’s health and wellbeing (a focus on Childhood obesity) 

National Health Policies 
 

The following issues are suggestions from the public for inclusion 
 

the impact of housing developments in Herefordshire on Hereford hospital and other social 
services 
 

51



52



 D
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
4\
0\
3\
A
I0
00
31
30
4\
$k
e5
ifs
z2
.d
oc
 

P
ag
e 
1 
of
 4
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
ol
lin
g 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e:
 J
u
ly
 2
01
3 

 F
in
al
 D
ec
is
io
n
 M
ak
er
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 / 
D
ec
is
io
n
 D
at
e 

Is
su
e 
T
yp
e:
 

• 
K
E
Y
 

• 
B
u
d
g
et
 &
 P
o
lic
y 
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
 It
em

 
(B
&
P
F
) 

• 
N
on
 K
ey
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
u
rp
o
se
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 a
n
d
 L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 E
H
&
P
 

4/
7/
13
 

B
&
P
F
 

*d
ec
is
io
n 
of
 C
ou
nc
il 
- 
Ju
ly
 

re
qu
ire
s 
28
 d
ay
 n
ot
ic
e 

Lo
ca
l D
ev
el
op
m
en
t F
ra
m
ew
or
k 
 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
re
vi
se
d 
LD
F
 fo
r 
ad
op
tio
n 
by
 C
ou
nc
il 

P
la
ce
s 
an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 

Y
vo
nn
e 
C
ol
em

an
 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

5/
7/
13
 

N
/A
 

A
nn
ua
l A
ud
it 
F
ee
 L
et
te
r 
an
d 
P
la
n 

 
C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ D
av
id
 

P
ow
el
l 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee

 
5/
7/
13
 

N
/A
 

A
nn
ua
l G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
S
ta
te
m
en
t 

 
C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ D
av
id
 

P
ow
el
l 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee

 
5/
7/
13
 

N
/A
 

A
nn
ua
l I
nt
er
na
l A
ud
it 
P
la
n 

 
C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ D
av
id
 

P
ow
el
l 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee

 
5/
7/
13
 

N
/A
 

A
ud
it 
an
d 
G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 W
or
k 

P
ro
gr
am

m
e 

 
C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ D
av
id
 

P
ow
el
l 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

5/
7/
13
 

N
/A
 

A
m
en
dm

en
ts
 to
 th
e 
P
la
nn
in
g 
C
od
e 

 
 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

5/
7/
13
 

N
on
-k
ey
 

A
pp
oi
nt
m
en
t o
f i
nd
ep
en
de
nt
 p
er
so
ns
 to
 

th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 p
an
el
 

T
o 
re
co
m
m
en
d 
th
e 
ap
po
in
tm
en
t o
f t
w
o 
in
de
pe
nd
en
t p
er
so
ns
 to
 th
e 

st
an
da
rd
s 
pa
ne
l 

C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ J
oh
n 
Jo
ne
s 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
– 
C
S
&
F
 

12
/7
/1
3 

N
on
 K
ey
 

 

H
al
o 
P
ru
de
nt
ia
l B
or
ro
w
in
g 
fo
r 
P
ur
ch
as
e 

of
 A
ir 
H
an
dl
in
g 
U
ni
ts
 fo
r 
Le
db
ur
y 

S
w
im
m
in
g 
P
oo
l 

T
o 
ap
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
al
lo
ca
tio
n 
of
 C
ap
ita
l E
xp
en
di
tu
re
 fu
nd
ed
 b
y 
pr
ud
en
tia
l 

bo
rr
ow
in
g 
fo
r 
th
e 
pu
rc
ha
se
 o
f A
ir 
H
an
dl
in
g 
U
ni
ts
 fo
r 
Le
db
ur
y 
S
w
im
m
in
g 

P
oo
l 

P
la
ce
s 
an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
  /
 M
ic
k 

Li
ge
m
a 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
– 
E
H
&
P
 

15
/7
/1
3 

N
on
 k
ey
 

P
la
nn
in
g 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
C
os
t R
ed
uc
tio
ns
 

(C
on
se
rv
at
io
n 
&
 A
rc
ha
eo
lo
gy
) 

T
o 
ag
re
e 
a 
pa
ck
ag
e 
of
 m
ea
su
re
s 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
co
st
s 
in
 th
e 
re
gu
la
to
ry
 

se
rv
ic
es
/c
on
se
rv
at
io
n/
ar
ch
ae
ol
og
y 
fu
nc
tio
n.
 

P
la
ce
s 
an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 –
 

A
nd
re
w
 A
sh
cr
of
t 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

(E
X
T
R
A
-O
R
D
IN
A
R
Y
 M
E
E
T
IN
G
) 

19
/7
/1
3 

B
&
P
F
 s
am

e 
as
 K
D
 r
eq
u
ir
es
 

28
 d
ay
 n
o
ti
ce
  

Lo
ca
l D
ev
el
op
m
en
t F
ra
m
ew
or
k 
co
re
 

st
ra
te
gy
 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
re
vi
se
d 
LD
F
 fo
r 
ad
op
tio
n 
by
 C
ou
nc
il 

P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

A
nd
re
w
 A
sh
cr
of
t 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

19
/7
/1
3 

N
/A
 

H
er
ef
or
d 
an
d 
W
or
ce
st
er
 F
ire
 a
nd
 R
es
cu
e 

A
ut
ho
rit
y 
R
ep
or
t 

 
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
  

19
/7
/1
3 

N
/A
 

Le
ad
er
’s
 R
ep
or
t 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
th
e 
Le
ad
er
’s
 r
ep
or
t, 
w
hi
ch
 p
ro
vi
de
s 
an
 o
ve
rv
ie
w
 o
f t
he
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e’
s 
ac
tiv
ity
 s
in
ce
 th
e 
la
st
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 m
ee
tin
g.
 

 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

19
/7
/1
3 

N
/A
 

A
ud
it 
an
d 
G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 R
ep
or
t 

in
cl
ud
in
g 
S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 P
an
el
 R
ep
or
t  

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 o
n 
st
an
da
rd
s 
ca
se
 (
C
llr
 G
le
nd
a 
P
ow
el
l) 

C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

19
/7
/1
3 
 

N
/A
 

E
le
ct
or
al
 R
ev
ie
w
 o
f H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
a 
re
po
rt
 o
n 
th
e 
B
ou
nd
ar
y 
C
om

m
is
si
on
’s
 fi
na
l r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 

of
 th
e 
E
le
ct
or
al
 R
ev
ie
w
 o
f H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 

C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

19
/0
7/
13
 

N
/A
 

A
pp
oi
nt
m
en
t o
f R
et
ur
ni
ng
 O
ffi
ce
r 
&
 

E
le
ct
or
al
 R
eg
is
tr
at
io
n 
O
ffi
ce
r 

 
C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
Jo
hn
 J
on
es
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

19
/7
/1
3 

N
on
-k
ey
 

A
pp
oi
nt
m
en
t o
f i
nd
ep
en
de
nt
 p
er
so
ns
 to
 

th
e 
co
un
ci
l’s
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 p
an
el
 

T
o 
re
co
m
m
en
d 
th
e 
ap
po
in
tm
en
t o
f t
w
o 
in
de
pe
nd
en
t p
er
so
ns
 to
 th
e 

st
an
da
rd
s 
pa
ne
l 

C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s/
Jo
hn
 J
on
es
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 C
&
A
 

25
/7
/1
3 

 
In
te
gr
at
ed
 C
or
po
ra
te
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 R
ep
or
t 

Q
1 

 
C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 C
S
&
F
 

25
/7
/1
3 

N
on
 K
ey
 

B
ud
ge
t M

on
ito
rin
g 
R
ep
or
t 

T
o 
re
po
rt
 th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 p
os
iti
on
 fo
r 
bo
th
 R
ev
en
ue
 a
nd
 C
ap
ita
l. 

C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ D
av
id
 

P
ow
el
l 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
  P
or
tfo
lio
 -
 H
&
W
B
 

25
/7
/1
3 

K
E
Y
 

N
ex
t S
ta
ge
 In
te
gr
at
io
n 
– 
W
ye
 V
al
le
y 

T
o 
ap
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
A
du
lt 
S
oc
ia
l C
ar
e 
(A
S
C
) 
N
ex
t S
ta
ge
 In
te
gr
at
io
n 
P
ro
je
ct
 

O
rg
an
is
at
io
na
l C
ha
ng
e 
M
od
el
 

S
pe
ci
fic
al
ly
 th
e 

 • 
P
ro
po
se
d 
op
er
at
io
na
l m

od
el
 a
nd
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
na
l s
tr
uc
tu
re
 fo
r 
th
os
e 

fu
nc
tio
ns
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 p
ar
t o
f t
he
 W
ye
 V
al
le
y 
s7
5 
an
d 
su
bs
eq
ue
nt
 

he
ad
co
un
t (
fu
ll 
tim

e 
eq
ui
va
le
nt
 (
fte
))
 im

pa
ct
 

• 
F
ut
ur
e 
co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 fo
r 
th
e 
Le
ar
ni
ng
 D
is
ab
ili
ty
 

C
om

m
un
ity
 S
er
vi
ce
 

• 
F
in
an
ci
al
 im

pl
ic
at
io
ns
 fo
r 
th
e 
20
13
/1
4 
&
 2
01
4/
15
 A
S
C
 R
ev
en
ue
 B
ud
ge
t 

 

P
eo
pl
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ H
el
en
 

C
oo
m
be
s 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
  

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 H
&
W
B
 

25
/0
7/
13
 

K
E
Y
 

C
om

m
un
ity
 S
up
po
rt
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ 

D
om

ic
ili
ar
y 
C
ar
e 
E
le
m
en
t 

T
o 
se
t o
ut
 a
nd
 g
ai
n 
ca
bi
ne
t a
pp
ro
va
l f
or
 th
e 
th
e 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 a
nd
 ti
m
el
in
e 
fo
r 
do
m
ic
ili
ar
y 
ca
re
 in
 li
ne
 w
ith
 th
e 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
bu
dg
et
 

an
d 
th
e 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
ob
je
ct
iv
e 
to
 in
cr
ea
se
 th
e 
us
e 
of
 D
ire
ct
 P
ay
m
en
ts
 a
nd
 

ot
he
r 
se
lf-
di
re
ct
ed
 s
up
po
rt
 o
pt
io
ns
. 

P
eo
pl
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
D
av
id
 P
ow
el
l 

W
ay
ne
 W
el
sb
y 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

25
/7
/1
3 

K
E
Y
 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 C
ou
nt
y 
N
et
w
or
k 
R
en
ew
al
 

T
o 
ou
tli
ne
 o
pt
io
ns
 fo
r 
N
et
w
or
k 
re
ne
w
al
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
P
ub
lic
 S
ec
to
r 
N
et
w
or
k 

C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ J
en
ny
 

53



 D
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
4\
0\
3\
A
I0
00
31
30
4\
$k
e5
ifs
z2
.d
oc
 

P
ag
e 
2 
of
 4
 

F
in
al
 D
ec
is
io
n
 M
ak
er
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 / 
D
ec
is
io
n
 D
at
e 

Is
su
e 
T
yp
e:
 

• 
K
E
Y
 

• 
B
u
d
g
et
 &
 P
o
lic
y 
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
 It
em

 
(B
&
P
F
) 

• 
N
on
 K
ey
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
u
rp
o
se
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 a
n
d
 L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 C
&
A
 

(P
S
N
) 

O
pt
io
ns
.  
T
o 
re
qu
es
t a
ut
ho
rit
y 
to
 th
e 
A
D
 w
ith
 th
e 
de
le
ga
te
d 
fu
nc
tio
n 
fo
r 
IC
T
 

to
 a
pp
ro
ve
 W
es
t M

id
la
nd
s 
P
S
N
 O
pt
io
n 

Le
w
is
 / 
D
om

in
ic
 L
at
ha
m
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 H
&
T
 

25
/7
/1
3 

K
E
Y
 

M
aj
or
 In
ve
st
m
en
t i
n 
H
ig
hw
ay
 

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 A
ss
et
s 

T
o 
de
ci
de
 o
n:
 th
e 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
op
tio
n 
fo
r 
ad
di
tio
na
l i
nv
es
tm
en
t i
n 
im
pr
ov
em

en
t 

in
 r
oa
d 
co
nd
iti
on
s 
an
d 
to
 d
el
eg
at
e 
th
e 
ap
pr
ov
al
 o
f t
he
 d
et
ai
le
d 
ca
se
 fo
r 

su
ch
 in
ve
st
m
en
t t
o 
of
fic
er
s,
 in
 li
ne
 w
ith
 th
e 
ke
y 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
pa
ra
m
et
er
s 
se
t. 

P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
H
ea
d 
of
 

H
ig
hw
ay
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
  

25
/0
7/
13
 

B
&
P
F
 

*d
ec
is
io
n 
of
 C
ou
nc
il 
– 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 
re
qu
ire
s 
28
 d
ay
 

no
tic
e 

Y
ou
th
 J
us
tic
e 
P
la
n 
 

T
o 
ap
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
Y
ou
th
 J
us
tic
e 
P
la
n 
as
 a
tta
ch
ed
 a
s 
an
 A
pp
en
di
x 
be
 

en
do
rs
ed
 fo
r 
ap
pr
ov
al
 b
y 
C
ou
nc
il.
   

 

P
eo
pl
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
/J
o 
D
av
id
so
n 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
 

- 
C
S
 

25
/7
/1
3 

N
on
 K
ey
 

C
ha
rg
in
g 
P
ro
po
sa
ls
 fo
r 
S
ch
oo
l T
ra
ns
po
rt
  

T
o 
re
co
m
m
en
d 
to
 C
ab
in
et
 p
ar
en
ts
 o
r 
ca
re
rs
 o
f p
os
t 1
6 
ch
ild
re
n 
w
ith
 s
pe
ci
al
 

ed
uc
at
io
na
l n
ee
ds
 (
S
E
N
) 
pa
y 
th
e 
sa
m
e 
co
nt
rib
ut
io
n 
as
 o
th
er
 p
ar
en
ts
 fo
r 

di
sc
re
tio
na
ry
 tr
an
sp
or
t. 

P
eo
pl
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ J
en
ni
 H
ic
ks
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
- 
 

25
/7
/1
3 

N
on
 K
ey
 

A
m
en
di
ng
 e
nt
itl
em

en
t f
or
 fr
ee
 

m
ai
ns
tr
ea
m
 e
du
ca
tio
n 
tr
an
sp
or
t 

T
o 
re
co
m
m
en
d 
to
 C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
th
at
 th
e 
ed
uc
at
io
n 
m
ai
ns
tr
ea
m
 

tr
an
sp
or
t p
ol
ic
y 
be
 a
m
en
de
d 
so
 e
lig
ib
ili
ty
 a
pp
lie
s 
to
 n
ea
re
st
 s
ch
oo
l o
nl
y 

ra
th
er
 th
an
 n
ea
re
st
 a
nd
 c
at
ch
m
en
t s
ch
oo
l 

P
eo
pl
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ A
nd
re
w
 

B
la
ck
m
an
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
– 
E
&
C
 

25
/0
7/
13
 

N
on
 K
ey
 

A
m
en
dm

en
ts
 to
 C
C
T
V
 p
ro
vi
si
on
 to
 

ac
hi
ev
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 s
av
in
gs
 

T
o 
ou
tli
ne
 th
e 
op
tio
ns
 fo
r 
a 
fu
tu
re
 m
od
el
 o
f C
C
T
V
 in
 th
e 
co
nt
ex
t o
f r
ed
uc
ed
 

fu
nd
in
g 

P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
ity
 / 
S
ha
ne
 

H
an
co
ck
  

 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
ol
lin
g 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e:
 A
u
g
u
st
 2
01
3 

 F
in
al
 D
ec
is
io
n
 M
ak
er
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 / 
D
ec
is
io
n
 D
at
e 

Is
su
e 
T
yp
e:
 

• 
K
E
Y
 

• 
B
u
d
g
et
 &
 P
o
lic
y 
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
 It
em

 
(B
&
P
F
) 

• 
N
on
 K
ey
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
u
rp
o
se
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 a
n
d
 L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

6/
8/
13
 

N
/A
 

 
 

 

  E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
ol
lin
g 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e:
 S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
3 

 F
in
al
 D
ec
is
io
n
 M
ak
er
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 / 
D
ec
is
io
n
 D
at
e 

Is
su
e 
T
yp
e:
 

• 
K
E
Y
 

• 
B
u
d
g
et
 &
 P
o
lic
y 
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
 It
em

 
(B
&
P
F
) 

• 
N
on
 K
ey
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
u
rp
o
se
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 a
n
d
 L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

6/
9/
13
 

N
/A
 

C
ou
nt
er
-f
ra
ud
 a
nd
 C
or
ru
pt
io
n 

P
ol
ic
ie
s 
– 
B
ie
nn
ia
l R
ev
ie
w
 

 
C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ D
av
id
 P
ow
el
l 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

6/
9/
13
 

N
/A
 

W
hi
st
le
 B
lo
w
in
g 
P
ol
ic
y 
– 
B
ie
nn
ia
l 

R
ev
ie
w
 

 
C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ D
av
id
 P
ow
el
l 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
  

P
or
tfo
lio
 -
 M
C
 

9/
9/
13
 T
B
C
 

K
E
Y
 

W
as
te
 C
on
tr
ac
t 

 
P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
A
nd
y 
T
ec
to
r 

C
ab

in
e

t 
M

em
b

e
r 

– 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 
M

C
 

11
/9
/1
3 

N
on
 K
ey
 

C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
S
av
in
gs
 

P
la
n 

T
o 
ag
re
e 
to
 in
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
of
 p
ar
ki
ng
 c
ha
rg
es
 a
t Q

ue
en
sw
oo
d 
an
d 

co
ns
id
er
 fu
tu
re
 s
er
vi
ce
 p
ro
vi
si
on
. 

P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
S
te
ve
 B
ur
ge
ss
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
– 
P
or
tfo
lio
 

M
C
 

11
/9
/1
3 

N
on
 K
ey
 

C
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
R
ev
ie
w
 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 
to
 g
en
er
at
e 
in
co
m
e 
an
d 
de
liv
er
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
 

sa
vi
ng
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
e 
fu
tu
re
 s
us
ta
in
ab
ili
ty
 o
f c
ou
nt
ry
si
de
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
 

P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
S
te
ve
 B
ur
ge
ss
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
– 
P
or
tfo
lio
 

M
C
 

11
/9
/1
3 

N
on
 K
ey
 

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
t o
f a
nn
ua
l b
ed
di
ng
 

w
ith
 s
us
ta
in
ab
le
 p
er
en
ni
al
 

pl
an
tin
g 
w
ith
in
 C
ou
nc
il 
co
nt
ro
lle
d 

be
ds
 

T
o 
ag
re
e 
to
 c
ha
ng
es
 to
 th
e 
re
gi
m
e 
fo
r 
fo
rm
al
 p
la
nn
in
g 
to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 

ye
ar
 o
n 
ye
ar
 s
av
in
gs
 w
hi
ls
t m

ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 a
m
en
ity
 fo
r 
lo
ca
l 

co
m
m
un
iti
es
 

P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
S
te
ve
 B
ur
ge
ss
 

O
ffi
ce
r 
D
ec
is
io
n 
- 

P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

11
/9
/1
3 

N
on
 K
ey
 

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
t o
f a
nn
ua
l b
ed
di
ng
 

w
ith
 s
us
ta
in
ab
le
 p
er
en
ni
al
 

pl
an
tin
g 
w
ith
in
 C
ou
nc
il 
co
nt
ro
lle
d 

be
ds
 

T
o 
ag
re
e 
to
 c
ha
ng
es
 to
 th
e 
re
gi
m
e 
fo
r 
fo
rm
al
 p
la
nn
in
g 
to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 

ye
ar
 o
n 
ye
ar
 s
av
in
gs
 w
hi
ls
t m

ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 a
m
en
ity
 fo
r 
lo
ca
l 

co
m
m
un
iti
es
 

P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
S
te
ve
 B
ur
ge
ss
 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
– 
P
or
tfo
lio
 

H
&
T
 

12
/9
/1
3 

N
on
 K
ey
 

R
es
id
en
t P
ar
ki
ng
 S
ch
em

e 
R
ev
ie
w
 
T
o 
se
ek
 a
pp
ro
va
l f
or
 th
e 
in
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
of
 a
 r
ev
is
ed
 r
es
id
en
t p
ar
ki
ng
 

sc
he
m
e 
po
lic
y 
an
d 
ap
pr
ov
al
 fo
r 
th
e 
ne
w
 c
ha
rg
es
 fo
r 
pe
rm
its
 

P
la
ce
s 
&
 C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
R
ic
ha
rd
 G
ab
b 
/ 

D
av
id
 H
ep
w
or
th
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 C
S
&
F
 

19
/0
9/
13
 

N
on
 K
ey
 

B
ud
ge
t M

on
ito
rin
g 
R
ep
or
t 

T
o 
re
po
rt
 th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 p
os
iti
on
 fo
r 
bo
th
 R
ev
en
ue
 a
nd
 C
ap
ita
l. 

C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ D
av
id
 P
ow
el
l 

54



 D
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
4\
0\
3\
A
I0
00
31
30
4\
$k
e5
ifs
z2
.d
oc
 

P
ag
e 
3 
of
 4
 

F
in
al
 D
ec
is
io
n
 M
ak
er
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 / 
D
ec
is
io
n
 D
at
e 

Is
su
e 
T
yp
e:
 

• 
K
E
Y
 

• 
B
u
d
g
et
 &
 P
o
lic
y 
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
 It
em

 
(B
&
P
F
) 

• 
N
on
 K
ey
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
u
rp
o
se
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 a
n
d
 L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
  

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 H
&
W
B
 

19
/0
9/
13
 

N
on
 K
ey
 

Lo
ca
l A
cc
ou
nt
  

T
o 
ap
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
Lo
ca
l A
cc
ou
nt
 r
el
at
in
g 
to
 A
du
lt 
S
oc
ia
l C
ar
e 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
. 

P
eo
pl
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ P
et
er
 S
ow
er
by
 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 -
 C
S
 

19
/0
9/
13
 

K
E
Y
 

P
os
t 1
6 
Le
ar
ne
rs
 w
ith
 L
ea
rn
in
g 

D
iff
ic
ul
tie
s 
&
 D
is
ab
ili
tie
s 
(L
LD
D
) 

R
ev
ie
w
 

 
P
eo
pl
e’
s 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
s 
– 
C
&
A
  

 

19
/0
9/
13
 

(T
B
C
) 

K
E
Y
 

B
ut
te
rm
ar
ke
t R
ef
ur
bi
sh
m
en
t 

T
o 
es
ta
bl
is
h 
if 
an
d 
ho
w
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
w
is
he
s 
to
 fu
nd
 th
e 

re
fu
rb
is
hm

en
t o
f t
he
 B
ut
te
rm
ar
ke
t a
nd
 to
 c
le
ar
ly
 s
et
 o
ut
 th
e 
op
tio
ns
 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
in
 m
an
ag
in
g 
th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t s
ho
ul
d 
it 
pr
og
re
ss
 

P
la
ce
s 
an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
C
hr
is
 J
en
ne
r 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 E
&
C
 

19
/0
9/
13
 

K
E
Y
 

C
ul
tu
ra
l, 
Li
br
ar
ie
s 
an
d 
C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
S
av
in
gs
 

T
o 
de
te
rm
in
e 
th
e 
pa
ck
ag
e 
of
 m
ea
su
re
s 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 

pr
op
os
ed
 in
-y
ea
r 
sa
vi
ng
s 

P
la
ce
s 
an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
A
nd
re
w
 

A
sh
cr
of
t /
 N
at
al
ia
 S
ilv
er
 

O
ffi
ce
r 
D
ec
is
io
n 
-P
la
ce
s 
&
 

C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

22
/0
9/
13
 

N
on
 K
ey
 

C
ar
 P
ar
k,
 S
ta
tio
n 
A
pp
ro
ac
h,
 

H
er
ef
or
d 
(2
25
) 

T
o 
se
ek
 th
e 
ap
pr
ov
al
 o
f t
he
 D
ire
ct
or
, P
la
ce
s 
an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 to
 

co
m
m
is
si
on
 th
e 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
gr
ou
nd
w
or
ks
 a
nd
 in
iti
at
e 
th
e 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 

pr
oc
es
se
s 
(s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
dv
er
tis
in
g)
 to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 c
ha
rg
ed
 fo
r 
ca
r 
pa
rk
 

at
 S
ta
tio
n 
A
pp
ro
ac
h,
 H
er
ef
or
d 
(t
he
 s
ite
 o
f t
he
 o
ld
 R
oc
kf
ie
ld
 D
IY
 

st
or
e)
 

P
la
ce
s 
an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
  

27
/0
9/
13
 

B
&
P
F
 

*d
ec
is
io
n 
of
 C
ou
nc
il 
– 
S
ep
te
m
be
r 

re
qu
ire
s 
28
 d
ay
 n
ot
ic
e 

Y
ou
th
 J
us
tic
e 
P
la
n 
 

T
o 
ap
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
Y
ou
th
 J
us
tic
e 
P
la
n 
as
 a
tta
ch
ed
 a
s 
an
 A
pp
en
di
x 
be
 

en
do
rs
ed
 fo
r 
ap
pr
ov
al
 b
y 
C
ou
nc
il.
   

 

P
eo
pl
e’
s/
Jo
 D
av
id
so
n 

 G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 IT
E
M
S
 –
 S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 2
01
3 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
/ 

B
R
IE
F
N
G
 D
A
T
E
 

IT
E
M
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

O
&
S
C
 P
R
E
-D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 P
R
IO
R
 T
O
: 

A
&
G
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 

C
ab
in
et
  

C
o
u
n
ci
l 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 D
at
e 

3 
S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
13
 

W
as
te
 C
on
tr
ac
t u
pd
at
e 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
an
 u
pd
at
e 
on
 th
e 
W
as
te
 C
on
tr
ac
t p
rio
r 
to
 c
on
si
de
ra
tio
n 
by
 C
ab
in
et
 

 
 

 H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
  I
T
E
M
S
 –
 S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 2
01
3 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
/ 

B
R
IE
F
N
G
 D
A
T
E
 

IT
E
M
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

O
&
S
C
 P
R
E
-D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 P
R
IO
R
 T
O
: 

A
&
G
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 

C
ab
in
et
  

C
o
u
n
ci
l 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 D
at
e 

12
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
13
 

R
ec
ov
er
y 
P
la
n 
fo
r 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
a 
pr
og
re
ss
 r
ep
or
t o
n 
th
e 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n.
 

 
 

12
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
13
 

W
or
k 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
s 
W
or
k 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e 

 
 

    E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
R
ol
lin
g 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e:
 O
ct
o
b
er
 2
01
3 

 F
in
al
 D
ec
is
io
n
 M
ak
er
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 / 
D
ec
is
io
n
 D
at
e 

Is
su
e 
T
yp
e:
 

• 
K
E
Y
 

• 
B
u
d
g
et
 &
 P
o
lic
y 
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
 It
em

 
(B
&
P
F
) 

• 
N
on
 K
ey
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

P
u
rp
o
se
 

D
ir
ec
to
ra
te
 a
n
d
 L
ea
d
 O
ff
ic
er
 

A
ud
it 
&
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

15
/1
0/
13
 

N
/A
 

 
 

 

C
A
B
IN
E
T
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 –
 C
S
&
F
 

17
/1
0/
13
 

N
on
 K
ey
 

B
ud
ge
t M

on
ito
rin
g 
R
ep
or
t 

T
o 
re
po
rt
 th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 p
os
iti
on
 fo
r 
bo
th
 R
ev
en
ue
 a
nd
 C
ap
ita
l. 

C
or
po
ra
te
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
/ D
av
id
 

P
ow
el
l 

C
ab
in
et
 M
em

be
r 
– 
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
 &
 T
 

30
/1
0/
13
 

K
E
Y
 –
 Im

pa
ct
 o
n 
se
ve
ra
l w
ar
ds
 

In
cr
ea
si
ng
 In
co
m
e 
fr
om

 P
ar
ki
ng
 –
 O
n 

S
tr
ee
t C
ha
rg
in
g 
In
 H
er
ef
or
d 

T
o 
ag
re
e 
to
 th
e 
in
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
of
 o
n 
st
re
et
 p
ar
ki
ng
 c
ha
rg
es
 in
 H
er
ef
or
d 

ce
nt
ra
l a
re
a 

P
la
ce
s 
an
d 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 / 
S
te
ve
 

B
ur
ge
ss
 

   

55



 D
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
4\
0\
3\
A
I0
00
31
30
4\
$k
e5
ifs
z2
.d
oc
 

P
ag
e 
4 
of
 4
 

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 IT
E
M
S
 –
 O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
01
3 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
/ 

B
R
IE
F
N
G
 D
A
T
E
 

IT
E
M
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

O
&
S
C
 P
R
E
-D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 P
R
IO
R
 T
O
: 

A
&
G
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 

C
ab
in
et
  

C
o
u
n
ci
l 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 D
at
e 

7 
O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
3 

R
oo
t a
nd
 B
ra
nc
h 
R
ev
ie
w
s 
- 
U
pd
at
e 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
an
 u
pd
at
e 
an
d 
co
ns
id
er
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
as
 it
 r
el
at
es
 to
 th
is
 C
om

m
itt
ee
. 

 
 

7 
O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
3 

T
as
k 
an
d 
F
in
is
h 
G
ro
up
 –
 In
co
m
e 
an
d 
C
ha
rg
in
g 
- 

P
ro
je
ct
ed
 a
dd
iti
on
al
 in
co
m
e 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 S
cr
ut
in
y 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 1
9 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 
ad
de
d 
to
 th
e 
T
as
k 
an
d 
F
in
is
h 
R
ep
or
t t
ha
t a
 r
ep
or
t b
e 

m
ad
e 
in
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
3 
se
tti
ng
 o
ut
 h
ow
 m
uc
h 
of
 th
e 
pr
oj
ec
te
d 
ad
di
tio
na
l i
nc
om

e 
ha
d 
be
en
 a
ch
ie
ve
d 
an
d 

re
vi
ew
in
g 
th
e 
in
te
nd
ed
 a
nd
 u
ni
nt
en
de
d 
co
ns
eq
ue
nc
es
 o
f n
ew
/a
dd
iti
on
al
 c
ha
rg
es
. 

 
 

 H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
  I
T
E
M
S
 –
 O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
01
3 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
/ 

B
R
IE
F
N
G
 D
A
T
E
 

IT
E
M
 

P
U
R
P
O
S
E
 

O
&
S
C
 P
R
E
-D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 P
R
IO
R
 T
O
: 

A
&
G
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e 

C
ab
in
et
  

C
o
u
n
ci
l 

M
ee
ti
n
g
 D
at
e 

11
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
3 

R
ec
ov
er
y 
P
la
n 
fo
r 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

T
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
a 
pr
og
re
ss
 r
ep
or
t o
n 
th
e 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n.
 

 
 

11
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
3 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
n 
fo
r 
D
el
iv
er
in
g 
A
du
lt 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 a
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 r
ep
or
t c
on
ta
in
in
g 
a 
sc
he
du
le
 o
f p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 r
ep
or
ts
 o
ut
lin
in
g 
th
e 
sa
vi
ng
s 
th
at
 

ar
e 
be
in
g 
ac
hi
ev
ed
 th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
n.
 (
Ju
ly
12
) 

 
 

11
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
01
3 

W
or
k 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e 

T
o 
co
ns
id
er
 th
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
s 
W
or
k 
P
ro
gr
am

m
e 

 
 

    

56


	Agenda
	
	7 CHILDREN'S SERVICES WORKFORCE REPORT
	8 ADULT  SOCIAL CARE BUSINESS CHANGE PROGRAMME 2013/14
	1 - Visio-ASCGovernanceframework_Final 20130708
	2 - Structure Chart 28_05_13
	3 - Next Stage Integration_project overview _final20130516
	4 - Next Stage Integration coms plan2
	6 - Key themes from public events
	5 - Emerging_Themes[1]

	9 Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group Urgent Care Review
	10 Work Programme
	Draft HOSC work programme July
	002 ERP 3Jul13 HOSC


